
City of Woodcreek City Council Meeting

February 10, 2016; 6:30 p.m.
Woodcreek, Texas

NOTICE/AGENDA
This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Open Meengs Act (Vernon’s Texas Codes Ann, Coy. Code Chapter 551). The
Woodcreck City Council will hold a Council Meecing on February 10, 2016, at 6:30 pm. at Woodcrcck City I-Jail, 41 Champions
Circle, Woodcreek. Texas at which &ne the following items will be considered:

I Call to Order
2. Invocation
3. Pledge
4. RoilCall

5. Public Comments: Members of the Public may sign up at the City Council meeting to
address the City Council. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker.

6. Citizen Communications: GeneraL: Members of the Public who have submitted a written
request to address the Gin’ Council on specific issues. Comments will be limited to Eve (5)
minutes per speaker.

A. Wimberley on Wheels (Karen Riordan)

7. Report Items:
A. DPW Monthly Report (Director of Public Works Frank Wood)
B. Treasurer’s Report for December 2015 (City Treasurer Golembiewski)
C. City Manager’s Monthly Public Report (Interim City Manager Paul Brandenburg)

8. Consent Agenda: All of the following items are considered to be self-explanatory by
the Council and may be acted upon with one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or Citizen so requests. For a
Citizen to request removal of an item from the Consent Agenda, a written request
must be filled out and submitted to the City Manager.

A. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Woodcreek City Council meetmg of
January 13, 2016

B. Approval of Treasurer’s Report for January 2016
C. Approval of Revised Right-of-Way Ordinance No. 15-217

9. Regular Agenda
A. Swearingin and Oath of Office of CityAttomey Roger Gordon (I1ayor Eskelund).
B. Discussion and possible action to adopt an Open Carry Resolution. (City Attorney

Gordon).
C. Discussion and possible action on the City’s Transportatior. Improvement Plan.

(Interim City Manager Brandenburg).

\Voodcreek Regular Agenda Page 1 of 2
February 10, 2016



1). Discussion and possibJe action to craft a resolution approving a transfer of funds
in the amount of S25.50(IO0 for the Iransportarion Improvement Plan
Lngincering. (Cirv _-\trornev Gordon).

IE. Board Presentation, discussion and 1,ossiblc action on the Cypress Creek
\\ arei’shed Program. interim Cite 1\laiiager flrandeirhur.

P. Discussion and appropriate action on naming ofhcia newspaper of the City of

\Voodcreek per Chapter 52, Section 4, 1cxas Local (;ovcl-ninent Cc,de. (Mayor
Eskehtnd).

10, Adjourn

lZ’ laws 0:? the ae’,;da air fc: r,bsm.uwn: mdi alanli. TI, G,I, C&,’,,. rI Fr,,’;,, i/’t apI! Ii flea/tn; rut,’ ,v,, HL’;e wciao,: fit lilt, Lo;i
C,nht (lit nmre of ‘‘5 /o’flni it’ / tI’:’ iv, :l1r: tV?? ni’btr. IS ‘,uuIfl.7r,’, 11; I ,‘XrI.t (,øf,’iWfl:tO.’ Lock V,v(t’,,’’ 551.111

1.0 ‘ iDehh,rat!og.’ thou! Proant:’). 55(0 5 L’,hi;.v,,to’,,j!w;:/ (jIll; ,ma Pou.itnw:i;. 5 5i.04
;,‘l:’?’:s;,/ . ,thvl’. 551.0 6 iD,’&n!it,a; ;thc:’! Sc.vtmr Dc’v..cj a,;,! 551.784 (P ‘ousozu’.’ ! )e.’?kPEflI;!).

I cerflh that the above notice was posted on the 5th of Februan’. 2016, ar/1__57a.m. By;

Paid Brandenburg. Interim c:i{

\\ rodereek Regular ;\gciida Page 2 of 2
chruan’ 1), 2016



WIMBERLEYONWHEELS

P.O.BOX2893

WIMBERLEY,TX78676

2

C
rC
m

Qm
-H°> —

ni 2—
cnzC

cn
-J

mC
Li,2

-n
mrn
(I,
rn2
C



C
O

N
V

E
N

IE
N

T
SE

R
V

IC
E

F
ree

d
o
o
r-to

-d
o

o
r

service
for

people
55

y
ears

of
ag

e
and

older
w

ho
live

in
W

im
berley

V
alley.

W
O

W
offers

trips
five

days
a

w
eek,

M
onday

through
Friday,

from
8

:3
0

am
to

5:00
pm

,
to

activities
in

W
im

berley,
K

yle,
S

an
M

arcos
and

N
ew

B
raunfels.

“N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
S

H
E

L
PIN

G
N

E
IG

H
B

O
R

S”

V
olunteer

drivers
are

“neighbors
helping

neighbors”
w

ho
use

th
eir

ow
n

vehicles
and

have
com

pleted
a

tw
o

hour
group

training
covering

topics
such

as
w

hat
to

do
in

th
e

case
of

an
em

ergency,
safety

tips
for

w
orking

seniors,
and

o
th

er
issues

th
at

can
affect

people
as

they
age.

A
ll

drivers
have

also
had

T
exas

driving
and

crim
inal

background
checks.

W
H

O
IS

E
L

IG
IB

L
E

T
O

R
E

C
E

IV
E

R
ID

E
S

?
*

•
M

inim
um

ag
e

of
55

or
older

•
L

iving
in

zip
code

78676
•

Individual
can

use
a

cane
or

w
alker

but
W

O
W

does
not

have
w

heelchair
accessible

service

T
O

S
IG

N
U

P
T

O
R

E
C

E
IV

E
R

ID
E

S
O

R
T

O

V
O

L
U

N
T

E
E

R
T

O
D

R
IV

E
,

P
L

E
A

S
E

C
A

L
L

5
1
2
-8

4
7
-1

7
8
0

F
O

R
M

O
R

E

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
.

*
P

le
a
se

n
o
te

o
n
c
e

e
n

ro
lle

d
,

rid
e
r

m
u

st

p
ro

v
id

e
5
-7

d
a
y
s

a
d
v
a
n
c
e

n
o

tic
e

fo
r

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
rid

e
s.

H
O

W
T

O
E

N
R

O
L

L
W

IT
H

W
O

W
T

O
R

E
C

E
IV

E
R

ID
E

S
:

C
all

th
e

W
O

W
office

at
5
1
2
-8

4
7
-1

7
8
0

and
m

ake
an

ap
p
o
in

tm
en

t
to

m
eet

w
ith

a
staff

m
em

b
er

w
ho

w
ill

com
plete

paperw
ork

to
enroll

in
th

e
program

.
T

he
staff

m
em

b
er

cai
m

eet
at

th
e

person’s
hom

e
or

at
our

office
located

in
th

e
W

im
berley

C
om

m
unity

C
enter

(n
ex

t
to

B
rookshire

B
rothers

grocery
sto

re).
T

he
ap

p
o

in
tm

en
t

w
ill

tak
e

approxim
ately

on
hour.

H
O

W
T

O
E

N
R

O
L

L
W

IT
H

W
O

W
A

S
A

V
O

L
U

N
T

E
E

R
D

R
IV

E
R

:

C
all

th
e

W
O

W
office

also
at

5
1
2
-8

4
7
-1

7
8
0

t
sch

ed
u
le

an
ap

p
o

in
tm

en
t

to
m

eet
w

ith
a

stal
m

em
b
er

in
our

office
inside

th
e

W
im

berley
C

om
m

unity
C

enter.
T

he
v
o
lu

n
teer

driver
can

d
id

ate
w

ill
com

plete
prelim

inary
paperw

ork
w

hich
includes

a
T

exas
crim

inal
and

driving
background

check.
O

nce
th

e
background

checks
are

com
pleted

and
th

e
driver

is
accep

ted
for

th
e

W
O

W
program

,
th

new
driver

w
ill

com
plete

a
tw

o
hour

group
training.

C
o
n
ta

c
t

U
s

W
IM

B
ER

LEY
O

N
W

H
EELS

R
O

.
B

O
X

2893
W

IM
B

ER
LEY

,
TX

78676
5
1
2
-8

4
7
-1

7
8
0

w
im

berleyonw
heel@

gm
ail.com

w
im

berleyonw
heels.com

D
O

N
A

T
IO

N
S

C
A

N
B

E
A

C
C

E
PT

E
D

D
IR

E
C

T
L

Y
TO

W
O

W



Council Meeting Date: February 10, 2016

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Subject/Title: Public wishing to address the City Council on Wimberley on Wheels (WOW)

Item Summary:

See attachments

Financial Impact/Financial Information:

No financial impact to the City at this time.

Comments/Recommendation:

Attachments

• Wimberley on Wheels Fact Sheet

• Wimberley on Wheels Brochure

Submitted By:

Paul F. Brandenburg

City Manager



C NAFkE: VEiv’EBEPLE1 ON WHEELS UQ’OV3

C SERVING £NDPVIJDTJpZS ACE 55

0 SERVICE HOURS MONDAY TER000H FRIDAY S mM 10 5 PM

C SERVING INDIVIDUALS V11 T-TIIJ THE 78576 ZIP CODE

C

GPRQ\E’TNC+TRPINSPQRTATICN AT NO COST

TRIP S TO iM3ERijA. SAN PIARGOS. KYLE AND NEW ERATJNSFELS

CWILL TWNSPOPTEOP MEDTC&L APPC;fl-JTTJERTS. TO SENOC iHP GROCERY

S HOPPING PILA2J\4ACY HAIR AE?OtJTIENTS. ETC.

eVOLUNTEER DPJVER WEE BE Al LB TO SELF-SELECT HIS/HER TRIP THROUGH A

COMPUTER S OTWARE SYSTEM CALLED RIDESCHEDTJLER

O ALL VOLUNTEER DRIVERS WILL HAVE HAD BACKGROUND AND DMV CHECK

COOL VOLUNTEER DRIVERS WILL I-lANE pZDITECNAL LL&BIIJTY INSURANCE THROUGH

CIMA



Treasurer’s Report of January 2016

6500.01
6500.15
6500.20
6500.21
6500.25
6500.30
6500.31
6500.40

6500

7000.0’
7003.02
7003.03
7033.04
7030.05
7000.15
7000.20
7000.30
7002.40

7000

7500.01 City Hall Utilities 876 3.000 29%’ 854 3,000 28”, 217 206 (12)

7B

‘-EJJ’:z;4ar
- SYTD tu 7j(T

3000 Ad Valorem ‘.x 110.694 198,030 55%. 25655
tsJaii15

189,228 61’S 93.192 104,165 (13,973)
3005 State Sales Tax 13,791 50,030 251’ 10,822 76,895 Ia’,,. 3,664 2,401 1,263
3010 Mixed Beverage Tax 296 800 37%’ 317 496 541. 148 - 4.3 8
3’32’3 PEC Franchise Fee 13.779 30,000 451.. 15.134 30.700 495. 5,935 6.622 (657)
3330 Tirr Warner Franchise ‘cc 7.933

- .?0.900 40%.. 6.28$ 19.591 321..
. - - -

3. 31’ 11 “SC PEGCabIeRe’snue 0 942— 0-c 8 166 8 166)
3040 AquaTexas Francn,se 76.895 83,000 555. 62,203 82,590 75%. 8,767 3,374 5,413
3050 lESt Franchise Fee 3.396 10,000 34%. 2,911 12,274 245,. - . -
3060 Telephone Franchise Fee 512 1,000 51’s. 512 1,949 26% 3 - 3
3070 QuickSand Franchise Revenue - 500 0: - , 500 , - . -
3080 Reimbursement 0%

3080.1 Engineering Reimbursement - “ - 0% 115 3,220 4%

3080.2 Legal Reimbursement - ‘‘ -, - 0% - - , - 5,476 0% ,,, - -
3080 3 Admin Reimbursement 0, 0
3090 Development Revenue 2,324 - 15,000 i5’6. 7.821 14,935 52% 254 2,066
3095 Sign Fees - 1’ ‘1’1’ ,, - 0% - (‘7;’ - 0% ‘i - -

4000 Interest Income 1,440 2,400 60% 473 800 59% 366 100
4010 OtherRevenue - 100 ,0% , , 40 450 9% .: - -

4015 Oak Wilt Containment 0 — - 0 / 675
4020 Municipal Court Reverse ‘40 1533 97 783 1,900 41% -.

‘ 763
Sf4!’ Donations Receved - 5.000 01” - 1’ - “‘:1 0% “11’ - -

Total Can Fund Revenues 225,199 417,300 5414 242,497 441,004 55%. 109.348 126,493

T-?o36%a ‘0142015 ‘. .; - --
LL”t_Expendliures: ,,‘j,,fl ,etYT0 - Bdet, ‘ZJan-lj Jan-IS Duff

(1,812)

266

783)

(18,470)

32,146
1 220

140
2.660
1,090

39
37,294

85.500

660
7,300
3,200

120
96,780

27,318 81.000 34%

0 0%

36%
34%
32’ “1
39%

5000.0 Salers and Wages
5000.03 City Manage’ Car Al owance
5000.05 Elected Olfica’ - Pay
5000.20 Payroll lax
5000.40 Retirement
5000.50 Direct Deposit Expense

5000 Personnel Services

5500.05 Bank Fees & Charges
5500.10 City Hall Maintenance/Repairs
5500.30 IT & Radio
5500.40 Newsletter
5500.50 Office Supplies
5500.60 Postage & Shipping
5500.61 Printing & Reproduction
5500.70 Storage Rental

5500 Office Expenses

2,900 6.477
742 2,376

43 108
31,002 91,963

7.833
0% 1’” 417

‘1’ 0% .‘1 60
34% 664
31% 304
“ 11
2,4% 9.309

- 03’

6.461 1.372
417

80
1,239 (575)

177 127
9 2

7,886 1,423

6003.3
6003.13
6003,11
6000.15
60-30.20
6000.21
6033.22
6033.25

6000

Audit Expenses
Coditcat:on
Coitract Labor
Engiieering
Legal Esoenses
General
Laud Reirrrbusab,’e
al Cases

Professional Services

25 — 0? 9
218 2,500 9% 6 2,500 0% - -

1,417 5.000 28% 2,398 6,700 36% - 2.350
- 1,500 0% - 632 0% - -

543 3,500 16% 942 3,600 26% 192 146
406 1,000 41% 837 1,500 56’?. 63 286
964 1,500 64% 558 2,400 23% 151 138
510 1,000 5111, 908 980 2%’: 510 908

4083 16,000 26% 5.649 18,312 31% 925 3.828

- 6.630 0% - 6,200 036 -
- 1.900 0% 614 6,500 9%. - -

2’TO 7,000 31%, 2,589 7,100 36% 463 521 59
- 2500 0% - 5100 0% - -

7,699 33.000 20%, 7.525 25.003 30% 560 1,893 1.330
2.631 6,388 560 1,453 893

9

(2,350)

46
(223)

13
(398)

(2,903)

5,058 1,136 - 438 438
9869 48,000 21 ‘0, 10,726 24,900 4331. 1.023 2,411 1,389

Deer Removal 600 10.000 6%. 825 1,500 55% - 300 300
Mowing - 5,500 0% 440 5,000 9% - - -
Oak Will Containment - 2,000 0% 1,425 2,000 71% - 675 675
Outdoor Beautitcation 2,642 12,000 22% 1,510 5,500 27% 535 - (535)
ROW Tree Trimming - 1,500 0% 775 18,000 4% - - -
Street Maintenance - 25,000 0% 13,314 60,000 22% - 1,400 1,400
Street Signs 303 1,000 30%. 3.124 1,000 21 21:, 217 100 (117)
Tree Liriib Pick-Up 3.630 3.500 10410 3,355 1,700 i1i7 - - -
Area Care/Maintenance 7,175 60,500 1 21’ 24,768 94.700 28%. 753 2,475 1,722

Ad VaioremTax Expense 417 2,000 2’’:1 414 1 800 23% - - -
Buildin9 Inspectors 2.455 5.033 45% 1.185 2,800 42’ 425 260 (165)
Code Ccn:pliance - 1.5CC 0% 594 7.303 ‘t1 - 34 34
Dues & Mernbersh’ps 572 1,250 46” 882 1,315 57% - 144 44
E’ection Expense 2,592 2,403 -35’s. - 2.314 06. - . -
Meeting Expense 623 1.500 42% 944 2.000 17. - 54 54
Public Nolees 736 1.030 75.3 464 1,000 45% 193 63 (130)
T’avel & Vehicle Exp ReinS 21 3,000 1 “ 1.281 3,000 43% - 250 250
Train rtg & Prof Develcpnerct 123 1.000 12’.’, 418 1.003 42’: - 70 70
Other Operating Expenses 7.540 19,150 291’. 6,203 22,529 28% 618 676 258



Treasurers Report of January 2016

7600.01
7600

802020
8020.25
8020.30
8020.40
8020.41
8020.60

8020

890010
8900

No Budget Amount
The corr.binat on o’ t”e Legal Expenses.
‘tecon’nend for Bucoet

7500.02 Telephone & Internet
7500.03 Outdoor Utilities

7500 Utilities

971 3,000 32% 972 3000 32% 243 243 (0)
1.237 3,000 41’> 1,126 5,000 23% 254 260 6
3,084 9,00034% 2,952 11,000 27% 715 709 (6)

TML Insurance 2.514 2,750 91% 2,618 2,362 i1% - - -

Insurance 2,514 2,750 91% 2,618 2,362 111% - - -

MC Judge 750 3,400 22% 1,450 4.200 35”., - 350 350
Misc. Court Costs 735 1,000 7431. 1.422 3,000 47% - - -

Prosecutor - 2,400 0% 435 4,000 11% - 334 384
State Comptroller Costs 54 1,000 5% - 3,000 0% - - -

Supplies - 200 0% 162 200 81% - 64 64
Traffic Enforcement 14,170 40,000 35% - 38,580 O’o. 7.085 - (7,085)
Municipal Court Costs 15,709 48,000 3331. 3,469 52,980 7% 7,085 798 (6,287)

Contigenoy Reseive
-

117,240 97,528 00. -

Miscellaneous ,,,. — 0% (221) 602 (602)
Reconciliation Discrepancies 656 -

- 0% - -

Miscellaneous 117,240 1% (221) - 0% 602 - (602)

Total Gen Fund Expenditures 87,924 417,420 21’>. 87,168 318,746 Lb> 21,028 18,983 (5.006)

Legend

7B



C
ity

of
W

o
o

d
ereek

0
2

t0
1

6
T

ra
n
sa

c
tio

n
L

ist
by

D
ate

Ja
n
u
a
ry

2016

T
ype

D
ate

N
um

N
am

e
M

em
o

P
cco

u
n

t
S

plit
D

ebit
C

redit

Jan
1

6
P

a8vheck
01/01/2016

D
irD

ep
B

arbara
J

G
rant

D
yed

D
eposit

1000-
O

peraling
-SPL

IT
-

0.00

P
aycheck

01/01/2016
D

ir
D

ep
L

inda
L

L
and

D
irect

D
eposit

1000-
O

perating
...-S

P
L

IT
-

0.00

P
aycheck

01/01/2016
D

ir
D

ep
P

aul
B

B
randenburg

D
irect

D
eposil

1000-
O

perating
.
.
.

-SPL
IT

-
0.00

Liability
C

heck
01/0412016

O
uickB

ooks
Payroll

S
er4

ce
C

reated
by

Payroll
S

ervice
on

12/31/2015
1000-

O
perating

..-S
P

L
IT

-
3

.1
2

7
9
8

C
heck

01104/2016
D

ebit
S

m
art

S
ign

1000-
O

perating
.
.
.

6500.31
S

treet
S

igns
194.75

C
heck

01/0412016
D

ebit
K

ing
F

eed
and

H
ardw

are
1

0
0

0
-O

p
eratin

g
...

6500.21
-O

utdoor
B

ea...
11.89

C
heck

01/0412016
1003

M
unicipal

.
.
.

5500.05
B

ank
F

ees
4...

4.00

C
heck

01/0712016
S

ervice
C

harge
1000

.
O

perating
.
.
.

5500.05
-

B
ank

F
ees

4...
5.00

D
eposit

01/08/2016
D

eposit
1000

.
O

perating
.
.
.

3000
A

d
V

alorem
T

ax...
90,192.04

D
eposit

01108/2016
D

eposit
1000

O
perating

.
.
.

3005
S

tate
S

ales
T

ax...
3,663.80

D
eposit

01/1012016
Interest

1023
P

ioneer
B

..
4000

-
Interest

Incom
e

127.68

C
heck

01/11/2016
D

ebit
H

EB
1000

O
perating

.
.
.

5500.50
-

O
ffice

S
uppli,..

12.47

C
heck

01/1212016
D

ebit
H

EB
1000

O
perating

.
.
.

5500.50
O

ffice
S

uppli...
6.96

C
heck

01/1212016
D

ebit
U

S
P

S
1000

O
perating

.
.
.

5500.60
-

P
o
stag

e
&

S...
56.09

L
iability

C
heck

01/13/2016
10051

T
M

R
S

01409
1000-

O
oeraling

.
.
.

-SPL
IT

-
71

5.75

C
heck

01113/2016
10052

X
erox

F
inancial

S
eM

ces
P

rir3
rg

1
0
0
0

O
perating

.
.
.

5500.61
-

Printing
&

R
.

13820

C
heck

01113/2016
10053

S
an

M
rco

s
D

ailyR
ecord

A
cc:#

PA
1936-c!assi5ed

1300’
O

perating
.
.
.

7000.20-
P

ubhz
N

otices
193.00

C
heck

01113/2016
10054

P
E

C
-

C
ityH

ali
3000096693

1000
O

perating
.
.
.

7500.01
.

C
tvH

all
Jtili...

69.25

C
heck

01/1312016
10055

P
E

C
-

O
utdoor

3000229534&
300033364

1000-
O

perating
.
.
.

1
5

0
0
.0

3
O

utdoorU
tili...

115.65

C
heck

01/13/2016
10056

A
ce

H
ardw

are
A

cct#
3

5
3

2
-

S
treet

S
igns

&
O

ffice
E

xpense
1000

-O
perating

.
.
.

-SPL
IT

-
26.68

C
heck

01/13/2016
10057

B
ojorquez

L
aw

Firm
.,

°L
L

C
L

egal
E

xpenses
-

‘rv538
1000-

O
perating

.
.
.

6000.21
-

G
enerai

560.00

C
heck

01/13/2016
10058

U
ane

N
.

P
arks

C
ontract

L
abor

-
B

ookkeepino
1000-

O
perating

.
.
.

6000.11
-

C
o
rlract

L
abor

462.50

C
heck

01/13/2016
10059

L
ockT

ite
S

to
rag

e-W
im

b
e...

S
torage

U
nit

S
em

i-A
nnual

R
ent

1
0

D
’-O

p
eratin

g
...

5500.70
S

to
rag

e
R

ental
510.00

Bill
01/13/2016

L
ockT

ile
S

to
rag

e-
W

:m
be...

Jul-S
ep

2016
S

torage
U

nit
1930-

A
ccounts

.
.
.

5500.70-
S

to
rag

e
R

ental
255.00

C
heck

01/13/2016
10060

H
ays

C
ounty

T
raffic

E
ntorcen-ert

1000-
O

perating
.
.

8020.60
-T

raffic
E

n’or...
7,085.00

C
heck

01/13/2016
10067

O
lson

E
lectric

lnv
1512259-5

1
0

0
0

-O
p

eratin
g

.
.

6500.21
-O

utdoor
B

ea,.,
123.33

D
eposit

01/13/2016
W

im
berleyS

prings
P

artn
ers

D
eposit

1
0

0
0

-O
p

eratin
g

...
3090

D
evelopm

ent
R

...
153,68

C
heck

01/13/2016
D

ebit
H

E
B

1
0

0
0

-O
p

eratin
g

...
5500.50-

O
fffceS

uppli...
8.24

C
heck

01/14/2016
D

ebit
O

ffice
D

epot
O

ffice
S

upplies
1

0
0

0
-O

p
eratin

g
...

5500,50-
O

ff C
e

S
uppli...

103.63

D
eposit

01/15/2016
D

eposit
1000

‘O
p
eratin

g
...

3
0
1
0

-M
ix

ed
B

everage...
147.91

D
eposit

01/15/2016
D

eposit
1021

R
eserved

,
,
.

4000’
Interest

Incom
e

86,08

C
heck

01/16/2016
10061

E
ric

C
E

skelund
O

fficial
P

ay
-

Jan
1000

‘O
p
eratin

g
,.,

-SPL
IT

-
9.23

C
heck

01/16/2016
10062

F
rank

W
ood

O
fficial

P
ay

-
Jan

1000
‘O

p
e
ra

tin
g

,.,-S
P

L
IT

-
9

2
3

C
heck

01/16/2016
10063

G
ene

G
olem

biew
sk,

O
fficial

P
ay

-
Jan

1000
‘O

p
eratin

g
...

‘SPL
IT

-
9.23

C
heck

01/16/2016
10064

G
ordon

M
arsh

O
fficial

P
ay-

Jan
1000

‘O
p
e
ra

tin
g

.,.-S
P

L
IT

-
9,23

C
heck

01/16/2016
10065

Judy
L

B
rizendine

O
fficial

P
ay

-
Jan

1000
O

perating
SPL

IT
-

9.23

C
heck

01/16/2016
10066

W
illiam

S
cheel

O
fficial

P
ay

-
Jan

1000-
O

peraling
.
,
.

-SPL
IT

-
9.23

P
aycheck

01/16/2016
D

ir
D

ep
L

inda
L

L
and

D
irect

D
eposit

1
0

0
0

-O
p

eratin
g

SPL
IT

-
0,00

P
aycheck

01/16/2016
D

ir
D

ev
B

arbara
J

G
rant

D
irect

D
eposit

1000
-O

oerating
,,..S

P
L

IT
-

0.00

P
aycheck

01/16/2016
D

iro
ep

P
aul

E
B

randenburg
D

irect
D

eposit
1CC-C’

O
oerating

.
,
.

-SPL
IT

-
0C

C

U
abilityC

ieck
01119/2016

O
u
ic

lo
o
k
s

Payroll
S

ervice
C

reated
by

P
ayro

IS
ervice

on
01:15/2316

1COO
‘-O

perating
.
.
.

-SPL
IT

-
3.35852

D
eposit

0
1
/9

/2
0
1
6

D
eposit

1000’
O

p
eratn

g
.
.
.

3020-
P

E
C

F
ranchise

.
.
.

5,935,18

C
heck

0
1
r9

/2
0
1
6

D
ebit

U
S

P
S

1000’
O

perating
.
.
.

5500,60’
P

o
stag

e
&

S
,..

6
1

4

D
eposit

01/22/2016
D

eposit
1000

-
O

peraling
.
.
.

3040
‘A

quaT
esas

E
ra,,,

8,786.89

C
heck

01/25/2016
D

ebit
B

ed
B

ath
and

B
eyond

1300’
O

perating
.
.
.

5500,50’
O

fflce
S

uppli...
5

6
2
7

C
heck

01/27/2016
10068

T
im

e
W

arn
erC

ao
:e

302013001
1

0
’O

p
e
ra

tin
g
...

7500.02’
T

eleohone
&

...
243.30

C
heck

01/27/2016
10069

A
T

S
E

ngineers
B

’ilding
Inspechons

1000-
O

perating
.
.
.

-SPL
IT

-
425.00

C
heck

01127/2016
10070

M
u

aT
ex

as
-

C
ityH

ail
000957765

0687110
1000-

O
perating

.
.

7500.01
-

C
irvH

al
0

th
,..

128.15

C
heck

01/27/2016
10071

A
guaT

exas
-

O
utdoor

9374970612O
11.976059070092O

,9745120699546
1000-

O
perating

,
.
.

7500,03
-

O
utdoor

U
tili...

138.24

C
heck

01/27/2016
10073

N
ancye

K
B

ritner
O

fficial
P

ay
-

D
ec

2015
&

Jan
2016

1000-
O

perating
,.,-S

P
L

IT
-

18.47

C
heck

01/27/2016
10074

K
etlyC

lem
ents

E
ntrance

m
aintenance

1000
‘O

p
eratin

g
,..

6500.21
‘O

u
td

o
o
r

B
ea,,,

400.00

D
eposit

01/27/2016
D

eposit
1000

-
O

perating
,
.
.

-SPL
IT

-
103,00

C
heck

01/27/2016
D

ebit
A

S
tudio

Z
-

A
rt

&
D

esign
1000-

O
perating

,
.
.

5500,61
-

Printing
&

R
,,,

12.99

C
heck

01/29/2016
D

ebit
ln*Stiles

M
anufacturing

1
0
0
0
-O

p
eratin

g
..,

8
9

0
0

-M
iscellan

eo
u
s

601.60

D
eposit

01/29/2016
Interest

1006’
P

E
G

-
#54,.,

4
0

0
0
-

Interest
Incom

e
1.28

P
ag

e
1



L C

C

a,

00
00

-l

V
‘0

00

C.) C.)
C

Mi a
00 0

a a

z
C

3

z
0’

3
‘0

-I

C—

a

o
oØa
0
0• —

CD

00
K)

3< 8
nto C

C0
Z D

-C.
00
00
00

DO

33
—

DO
C) C’
o o
33
COo

Ca

a
Co

C,

CO

(0

CO

a

0.) =



City Manager Monthly Public Report February 10, 2016

• FEMA — Met with FEMA representatives for Public Assistance. Public

Assistance would include repairs for local roads and creek/stream cleanout.

Must demonstrate that this was flood related and not just neglect or years

of non-maintenance.

• Potential Hog Creek Detention Facility— Regional stormwater mitigation
project. Ongoing discussions with FEMA and Hays County. Likely to be an
Interlocal project and not federal.

• Woodcreek Apartments. The second set of comments has been circulated
amongst the reviewing parties. Project still tracking to commence the first
quarter of 2016.

• Augusta Park. Park is nearing completion. Last set of projects underway and
being completed. Should be finalized in the next 45 days.

• On Street Right of Way Parking Permits are now available at City Hall.





Hours:
Mileage:

DARRELL W. AYRES
CONSTABLE, PcT. 3

HAYS COUNTY, TExP,s

Woodcreek Patrol
January 2016

Total
91
767

I

Traffic Citations/Warnings
Code Violation
Close Patrol:
Criminal:
Civil:
Other:
Public/Agency Assist:
Warrants:
Jailing:

2
0
3
3
2
0
6
0
0

• Please note undocumented civil questions, concerns and other
instances will not be included in this report.

Constable

___________

Browi?3r

P.O. Box 1316 / 14306 Ranch Road 12, # 10, Wimberley, Texas 78676

I
/; /

Fax: 512-847-7352 Office: 512-847-5532 e-mail: darre1layresco.hays.txus





City of Woodereek City Council Meeting
January 13, 2016: 6:30 p.m.

41 Champions Circle
Woodcreek, Texas 78676

Minutes

1.) Call to Order; Mayor Eskelund called the meeting to order at 6:30 pin.

2.) Invocation

3.) Pledge

4.) Roll Call. Present: Mayor Eric C. Eskelund, Mayor Pro Tern Nancye Britner, Councilmember
William Scheel, Councilmember Jerry Moore, Councilmember Gordon Marsh, Councilmernber
Judy Brizencline, [nterim City Manager Paul Brandenburg, City Treasurer Gene Golembiewski,
City Financial Coordinator Liane Park. Absent: Director of Public Works Frank Wood.

5.) Public Comments: George Hyde, representing the law firm of Denton, Navarro, Roca. Bernal,
Hide and Zech withheld comments for a regular agenda item. Sharri Woods spoke about
ordinance violations. John Lewis withheld comments for the public hearing. Marianne Mitchell
expressed her thanks to the City for removing the accumulation of rocks on Brookmeadow Drive.
Jack Kinkel chose to speak during the public hearing concerning fences. Dorothy Harris of 30
Cypress Point inquired about the engineering report in relation to the flooding. Nancye Britner
commented on a letter from Texas Municipal Courts Education Center thanking the City for
participating in National Night Out.

6.) Citizen Comments: There were no citizen comments.

7.) Report Items:
A. In the abence of Director of Public Works Wood. City Manager Brandenburg reported
that he is coordinating information from DPW Wood and the County regarding the status of
the 2015 repair requests, alonjwith a list of storm damages resulting from the October 2015
flood.
B. City Treasurer Golembiewski reported year-to-date revenues of $115,851.00 and
$66,896.00 in expenditures.
C. City Manager Brandenburg presented his Monthly Public Report.

8.) Consent Agenda:
A. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Woodcreek City Council meeting of December 9,
2015.
B. Approval of Treasurer’s Report for December 2015.

Mayor Pro Tern Britner moved to accept the Consent Agenda in its entirety. The motion was
seconded by Councilmember Moore, which passed with a vote of 5-0-0.

Page 1 of 3
Woodcreek City Council Meeting
January 13, 2016



9.) Public Hearing and Action on Section 156.058 (Fencing) of the Code of Ordinances to allow
fences nearer than 25 feet to an exterior lot line bordering the golf course under specified
conditions.

A. Staff Report: City Manager Brandenburg thanked the Planning and Zoning Committee
and all who were involved in creating a very good ordinance. He explained the need for a
five foot setback from the rear property line and the small animal mesh addition to fences and
the necessity of it matching the color and architecture of the fence.
B. Public Hearing: Hearing Open 6:30 p.m. John Lewis pointed out a discrepancy in the
City Fee Ordinance relating to the permit fee for fence applications. Jack Kinkle expressed
his appreciation of the current and past City Council for the effort, time and work that went
into reaching this stage in the process. Hearing Closed: 6:56 p.m.
C. Discussion and Action: After discussion, Mayor Pro Tern Britner moved to approve
Ordinance 156.058 as proposed, with the recommendations from P&Z as submitted. with a
five (5) foot setback from the rear property line and small animal fencing not to exceed two
(2) feet of the total height of the fence and material color recommended by P&Z. The motion
was seconded by Councilmember Moore, which passed with a vote of 5-0-0.

Mayor Pro Tern Britner moved to amend the draft ordinance amending Section 156.058 of
the City’s Code of Ordinances as proposed, and to adopt changes permitting the construction
of fences, based on the recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission. With the
change to the small animal fencing not to exceed 50% of the total height of the main fence,
and for the small animal fencing to be of the same color to match the architecture of the main
fence. Councilmember Moore seconded the aended motion, which passed with a vote of 5-
0-0. IL p
Councilmember Marsh moved to approve the original amended motion. The motion was
seconded by Councilmember Moore, which passed with a vote of 5-0-0.

e
10.) Regular Agenda

A. After discussion, Mayor Pro Tem moved to appoint Interim City Manager Brandenburg as the
City’s official Flood Plain Manager. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Moore, which
passed with a vote of 5-0-0% S

B. George Hyde. of the law firm of Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech spoke in
support of his firm. After discussion. Councilmember Marsh moved to appoint Denton Navarro

Rocha Bernal Hyde and Zech for Woodcreek legal services. Councilmember Brizendine
seconded the motion, which failed 2-3-0. Councilmember Moore moved to engage the ru-ni of
Roger Gordon Law’ as City Attorney. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tern Britner.
which passed with a vote of 3-2-0,
C. After discussion. Councilmember Marsh moved to take no further action oil the Joinder of
Lots issue. The motion was seconded by councilmember Brizendine, which passed with a vote of
5-0-0.
D. Ailer discussion. Mayor Pro Tern Britner moved to direct City Manager Brandenburg to
investigate Open Carry with Attorney Roger Gordon. The motion was seconded by
Councilmember Marsh, which passed with a vote of 5-0-0.

Page 2 of 3
Woodcreek City Council Meeting
January 13, 2016



E. After discussion, Councilmember Moore moved to accept Myers Concrete bid of $6,500.00
for pothole repairs, with work to begin no later than January 18, 2016. The motion was seconded
by Mayor Pro Tern Britner, which passed with a vote of 5-0-0. Councilinember Moore moved to
accept Hays County’s bid of $4,280.00 for ernergency repairs at the curve of Champions Circle.
The motion was seconded by Councilmernber Marsh, which passed with a vote of 5-0-0.

12.) Adjourn: There being no ffirther business, Mayor Eskelund adjourned the meeting at 8:10 p.m.

Eric C. Eskelund. Mayor

Paul E Brandenburg, Interim City Manager

Woodcreek City Council Meeting
January 13, 2016

Page 3 of 3

0





ORDINANCE NO. 16-219

CITY OF WOODCREEK, TEXAS

AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 156 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES

ZONING OR]MNANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WOODCREEK TO CORRECT A SCRJVENER’S ERROR TO
ORDINANCE NO. 15-217 ADOPTED OCTOBER 14, 2015
AMENDING TITLE XV (“LAND USAGE”), CHAPTER 156
(“ZONING”), SECTION 156.029 (“PARKING”), OF THE CITY
OF WOODCREEK CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING
FOR EXCEPTIONS, UNDER SPECIFIED CONDITIONS, TO
THE PROHIBITION AGAINST PARKINGVEHICLES ON
PUBLICLY-OWNED RIGHTS-OF-WAYt PARK OR
GREENBELT; LIMITING SUCH PARKING ON RIGHTS-OF-
WAY FRONTING A RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY TO THE
OWNERS AND OCCUPANTS OF THE PROPERTY
ABUTTING THE PARKING SPACE, THEIR GUESTS, AND
ANY NEIGHBOR TO WHOM SUCH OWNERS AND
OCCUPANTS MAY SPECIFICALLY GRANT PERMISSION;
PROHIBITING SUCH PARKING BETWEEN THE HOURS OF
2:00 A.M. AND 6:00 A.M. WITHOUT AN OVERNIGHT
PARKING PERMIT; PROVIDING A PROCESS. AND
ESTABLISHING A $10.00 ANNUAL FEE FOR THE
ISSUANCE OF?SUCH OVERNIGHT PARKING PERMITS;

/*PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS, PROVIDING
FOR kENACTME, REPEALER, SEVERABILITY,
CODIFIèATION, ANfrbFECTIVE DATE, AND FINDING

.PROPER NOflCE AND MEETING

VHEREAS. pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 5 1.001, the City has general
authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the good government,
peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out a power
granted by law to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council frnds that parking opportunities in the residential districts of the
City are very limited; and

WHEREAS. The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 15-217 on October 14, 2015, amending
Title XV, Chapter 156, Section 156.029 to provide for exceptions, under certain

Ordinance No. 16-219 Page 1 of4
Amending Chapter 156 of the Code of Ordinances
(“Zoning”)



conditions, to the prohibition against parking vehicles on the rights-of-way, and
additional exceptions as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the City Council in the adoption of Ordinance No. 15-2 17 by a 3-0 vote expressed
their intent to adopt the aforementioned exceptions;

WHEREAS, the City Council in the adoption of Ordinance No. 15-217 intended to approve an
Ordinance expressly addressing right-of-way parking, and extraneous language
was inadvertently included in said Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City Council frnds that the amending the Zoning ordinance to allow and regulate
additional parking opportunities, as provided for iii this ordinance, is reasonable,
necessary, and proper for the good govermnent of the City of Woodcreek,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Woodcreek:

1. FINDINGS OF FACT

The foregoing rccitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of fact as if
expressly set forth herein.

2. ENACTMENT

Ordinance No. 15-217 be and the same is hereby amended to correct a scrivener’s error to amend
Chapter 156 (“Zoning”) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Woodcreek at Section 156.029
so as to read in accordance with Attachment A, which is attached hereto and incorporated into this
Ordinance for all intents and purposes.

3. REPEALER

All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof; that are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this
Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, herein.

4. SEVERABILITY

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed
invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with
jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any other valid portion of
this Ordinance.

5. CODIFICATION

The City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to record and publish the language of Chapter
91, as amended by this Ordinance, in the City’s Code of Ordinances.

Ordinance No. 16-219 Page 2 of4
Amending Chapter 156 of the Code of Ordinances
(“Zoning”)



6. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage and the publication of caption of
this ordinance.

7. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed
was attended by a quorum of the City Council, was open to the public, and that public notice of
the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act,
Texas Govermnent Code. Chapter 551.

PASSED & APPROVED this, the

_____

day of February. 2016, by a vote of (ayes) to —

(nays) and — (abstentions) of the City Council of Woodereek, Texas.

CITY OF WOODCREEK:

Mayor Eric C. Eskelund

ATTEST:

Paul Brandenburg, City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
The Law Office ofRoger Gordon

OrdinanceNo. 16-219 Page3of4
Amending Chapter 156 of the Code of Ordinances
(“Zoning”)



Attachment “A”

City of Woodereek

CODE OF ORDINANCES

TITLE XV: LAND USAGE

CHAPTER 156: ZONING
•.t.

General Requirements and Limitations

§ 156.029 PARKING.

Parking of automobiles, trucks, buses, trailers, mobile homes, recreational or commercial vehicles on
publicly-owned rights-of-way, park or greenbelt is prohibited excepf under the following conditions:

(A) Parallel parking of personal automobiles and trucks will be allowed along the street right-of-way
in front of a residential property if the vehicles are oulled off the street pavement (all tires must be off the
pavement), no part of the vehicle projects out overyement. and thass has been mowed to a height
of less than 4 mches V

\t. <
(WI Residential property owners may elect t&shtface the päi2Uel narkin space in the right-of-way

with a pervious cover, such as gravel cnished
.

(C) Parking on nhts&ay allowdi4w this secfl prohibited between the hours of 2 00 a m and
6:00 a.m. unless the resident’fl from the city.

.

m by this section is restncted to the owners and occupants of the
propatbutting the o space. ‘sts. and any neighbor as such owners and occupants may
specifieirant nermissio

(E) An ovdhight parlcinatermit will be issued by the city uoon completion of an application and
payment of an annual $10.00 f All nermits will exnire on December31 of the year in which they were
issued. The permit hangers will be a different color each year. This permit must be hung from the rear view
mirror or the parked vehicle will be issued a violation.

(F) Parking of personal vehicles shall be allowed on publicly-owned rights-of-way, parks and
reenbelts with paved or pervious parking spaces provided by the city, subject to the restrictions of any
posted signs.

(G) Penalty. Any person violating any provision of this section shall be subject to the penalties and
provisions in S 10.99 of this code of ordinances.

Ordinance No. 16-219 Page 4 of4
Amending Chapter 156 of the Code of Ordinances
(“Zoning”)



Council Meeting Date: February 10, 2016

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Subject/Title: Swearing in and Oath of Office of the City Attorney Roger Gordon.

Item Summary:

The City Attorney position is required to be sworn into office. At the last City Council meeting
on January 13, 2015, the City Council approved the Law Offices of Roger Gordon for the city’s
City Attorney.

Financial Impact/Financial Information:

None

Comments/Recommendation:

Mayor Eskelund will conduct the swearing in and oath of office.

Attachments

None

Submitted By:

Paul E. Brandenburg

City Manager





RESOLUTION NO.

___________________

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO POST NOTICES AT

THE ENTRANCES TO BUILDINGS OWNED OR LEASED BY THE

CITY OF WOODCREEK PROHIBITING CONCEALED OR OPENLY

CARRIED HANDGUNS AS PROVIDED BY STATE LAW AND TO

POST NOTICES ADVISING THE PUBLIC OF THE PROHIBITION OF

CARRYING A HANDGUN TN CITY FACILIITES THAT HOUSE THE

MUNICIPAL COURT AND COURT OFFICES.

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the State of Texas has passed House Bill 910

which became effective January 1, 2016 allowing the concealed or open carrying of handguns by

license holders, allowing license holders to carry handguns in public areas to include buildings

owned or leased by a governmental entity; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Texas Penal Code Section 30.06 and 30.07

provide statutory notice that a license holder they may not carry a handgun either concealed or

openly carried into any room which houses a meeting of a governmental entity that is subject to

the Open Meetings Act if notices are properly posted; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Texas Penal Code 46.03 also permits the City of

Woodcreelc (City) to prohibit a handgun license holder from carrying a handgun in portions of a

building utilized by a government Court or offices which are essential to the Court operations

and to make the determination as to which portions of the building are essential; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Texas Attorney General has determined the

new regulations require the City to confer with the Municipal Court about which portions of the

building are essential for the Court and Court offices; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is beneficial for the safety of all participants and

attendees to prohibit the carrying of handguns in the Municipal Court, Court Offices or a

Governmental Meeting that is subject to the Open Meetings Act and place such statutory notices

in compliance with the new laws at all the relevant locations in the City; and,

‘WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is beneficial for the safety of all participants and

attendees to place signs designating areas where handguns are prohibited pursuant to Texas

Penal Code 46.03;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF WOODCREEK TEXAS:

Section 1. The City recognizes Penal Code 30.06, 30.07 and 46.03 as the applicable state

statutory regulations governing the possession of handgnns in municipal buildings.

Section 2. The City hereby prohibits handgun license holders from carrying in City

courtrooms, Court offices and portions of the building identified as essential to the flrnction of

the Court and Court offices as identified in the schematic attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The City shall post signs to be located at the doors to the building(s) and areas

within any building which house City courtrooms, Court offices and those areas identified as

essential to the function of the Court and Court offices stating:

1



Essential Court Facilities

Weapons Prohibited

Texas Penal Code §46.03

Section 4. The City also prohibits handgun license holders from carrying handguns in
rooms during meetings that are subject to the Open Meetings Act as identified in the schematics

in Exhibit A. The City shall erect signs to be located at the doors to the building(s) that reflect

the specific statutory language for the signage and shall post the signs before the building is open

to the public prior to any applicable meeting. At all other times, the signs shall be removed.

Section 5. The City expressly permits handgun license holders from carrying handguns in
rooms that are otherwise subject to the Open Meetings Act during non-governmental or social
gatherings provided the rooms are not being used for governmental purposes at that time; for
example, coffee groups or bridge clubs.

Section 6. The City Council directs the City Manager or his designee to post and remove

the requisite signs as stated above.

Section 7. This Resolution is effective immediately upon passage and repeals any prior
resolutions, policies or practices inconsistent or in conflict with this Resolution

PASSED & APPROVED this, the

_____

day of

_______________,

2016, by a vote of_ (ayes)
to (nays) and — (abstentions) of the City Council of Woodereek, Texas.

CITY OF WOODCREEK:

Mayor Eric C. Esicelund

ATTEST:

Paul Brandenburg, City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

The Law Office of Roger Gordon

2



4€:

e

a

I

I

I





-j

Council Meeting Date: February 10, 2016

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Sub ject/Titie: Renort and Action on the City’s Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP)

Item Summary: This report is the product of several years of work involving the community,
transportation committee, and the elected body. The purpose of the TIP was to create a plan
to address the condition of the city’s roads in a systematic and financially prudent manner.

Fina ncial Impact/Financial Information:

• 2016 - $25, 560 for Engineering 2nd Design
• 2017—2017- See report

Comments/Recommendation:

• It is staff’s recommendation to have the City Council approve and accept the TIP.
• There is a companion item on the City Council agenda authorizing the expenditure of

$25,500 from the capital fund in order to conduct the design and engineering in 2016,
for the subsequent road projects identified in the TIP for 2017.

ttachments

• City of Woodcreek Transportation Improvement Pan prepared by Engineer Dan Rogers
and dated and stamped January 26, 2016

Submitted By:

Paul E. BrandenDurg

City Manager





City of Woocicreek
Transportation Improvement Plan

Prepared by:
Dan Rogers

January 26, 2016
,‘-,... .•c,a

çbiXLtr
/ •4 %t”



Purpose: The City of Woodcreek (City) has an extensive road network (network) that has been
maintained at City expense. The network was constructed in conjunction with the Woodcreek
Subdivision. As the network has aged, the maintenance expense has increased to the point that it
consumes a substantial portion of the City budget. In order to proactively control future maintenance
expenses, the City has contracted with Dan Rogers of Rogers Design Services to develop a long range
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP).

The City is aware that much of the maintenance effort to date is directly related to the modest pavement
structure and drainage facilities provided by the Subdivision developer. By improving pavement structure
and drainage facilities, network maintenance expenses can be reduced. The purpose of this TIP
development effort is to determine what combination of maintenance and repair on the network will
provide the better financial outlook for future City network maintenance expenditures. In addition, the
study considered other network improvements that should be considered as part of this effort.

Process: Mr. Rogers collected data on all the roads in the network. Data was collected related to road
condition, drainage features, and safety features. The data collection sheets are included in this
document as an appendix. After collecting this data, Mr. Rogers reported the results of the findings to the
Transportation Committee (the Committee) at a meeting on 12/1/14. Based on the discussion at this
rreeting. there were several recommendations that began to be implemented into the TIP. Mr. Rogers
developed a preliminary plan for network improvements and shared it with the committee at the
frieeting on 1/12/15. Based on comments received at this meeting, Mr. Rogers updated the plan, and
submitted it to the Committee on 2/9/15. The Committee agreed with the revisions and directed Mr.
Rogers to develop a draft TIP including the preliminary plan for network improvements for review and
discussion at the Committee meeting of 3/16/15.
Based on comments at the meeting of 3/16/16, Mr. Rogers updated the TIP. After reviewing the TIP, the
Committee transmitted the TIP to the City Council for review and approval.

Findings: Based on field data collected, the following findings and recommendations were developed:
Roadway Geometrics / Safety data: Of the 33 roads in the network, 18 appear to have a potential fixed
object in the clear zone: 8 appear to have sight distance deficiencies at intersections, and 7 appear to
have stopping sight distance deficiencies. I recommend that the Committee and the City develop a set of
design criteria based on the roadway functional classification. The committee has already developed a
classification system for the network and developing criteria related to that designation is
recommended. After developing these criteria, I recommend taking steps to resolve the deficiencies as
feasible. Where fixed objects are currently located in the clear zone of a road, The City should consider
developing policy of how to address that related to both the existing condition and related to proposed
conditions. If the object is a tree, the City should determine if the object warrants removal, protection, or
notification. The City should develop policies related to new and replacement mailbox structures that
accommodate break-away features if they are in the clear zone of the roadway. Where intersection sight
distances are restricted by vegetation that is in ROW, the vegetation should be cleared to allow proper
sight distance. The City should consider developing policy to regulate the use of certain types of
;andscaping in locations where that landscaping might create a safety issue in the future. Where



- stopping sight distance is deficient for the roadway, the City should determine what alternative
resolutions are available including notification and other speed reduction strategies.
Pavement Condition data: There is a need for maintenance on many of the roads in the network;
however the roads are in relatively good shape from a structural standpoint. Much of the maintenance
relates to substandard drainage, and as drainage issues are resolved, maintenance costs will decrease
from current levels. In addition, some maintenance costs are related to substandard pavement structure.
As roadways are repaired, if there are substandard pavement structures, they should be improved.

The Committee has identified four roads as falling under the classification of collectors including
Woodcreek Drive. Brookhollow Drive. Brookmeadow Drive, and Champions Circle. Sixteen roads were
classified as local roads, and fifteen roads were classified as ultra low volume roads. A Roadway
Classification Map is included as an appendix to this TIP.

It is the desire of the Committee that the collector roads (Woodcreek Drive, Brookhollow Drive,
Brookmeadow Drive, and Champions Circle) be upgraded to a Hot Mix Asphaltic Concrete Pavement
(RMACP) surface. As commonly implemented, this would be a 2’ thick mat over the existing roadway.
Previous studies have identified that the flexible base (flex base) used in Woodcreek Drive is 2.5” to 3”
thick. This is much lower than usual. It would be common to have 6” of flex base on a roadway with this
level of traffic. Accordingly, the TiP recommends reconstructing the existing roadway on Woodcreek to
address this deficiency prior to installing HMACP. In addition, drainage of Woodcreek should also be
considered and repaired as part of the construction effort. Since the cost of an HMACP overlay is high, it
is prudent to determine the thickness of the other two roads that are candidates for the HMACP overlay.
if the pavement structures are found to be deficient, that should be resolved as part of the construction
of that road. The TIP has an allowance for additional testing, but does not provide for any additional
reconstruction (other than Woodcreek). If the testing reveals that additional reconstruction is required,
the TIP should be updated to reflect that.

The Committee indicated a preference to develop a TIP based on the following approach: There are three
ways to approach improvements.

• A silver approach would provide for the minimum level of maintenance needed to maintain the
network as-is. It would not include addressing any drainage or structural issues.

• A gold approach would provide for a silver level of maintenance, but would also include
addressing structural and drainage deficiencies as part of the effort. Only those deficiencies that
be expected to reduce long term maintenance costs will be implemented. Improvements will be
measured with respect to providing the most “bang for the buck”.
A platinum approach vill provide for a silver level of maintenance and would also address
structural and drainage deficiencies. All deficiencies would be addressed regardless of benefit and
cost implications. Improvements will not be measured with respect to cost and benefits, but will
be implemented on a network wide basis.

Based on discussions with the Committee, it was determined that the gold approach was the best for the
City. This approach would provide for an HMACP surface on the four collector level roadways, and a chip
and seal surface on all other roadways. Improvements to the pavement structure on the collectors would
be provided to protect the investment into the HMACP surface. In addition, drainage improvements
would be implemented as part of the construction effort. The drainage improvements would be
implemented on both collectors as part of the construction project and on the local roads as part of the
maintenance efforts.



Based on feedback from the Committee, the preference is for providing construction/reconstruction by a
contractor every other year (even years starting in 2016). In the odd years, starting in 2017, the City
Would contract with Hays County to procure county-force based maintenance services. Additionally, in
odd years funds are proposed to be set aside for development of construction and drainage plans for use
in the successive years. The duration of the TIP was set to occur over a 12 year cycle. This approach will
accomplish all the goals related to implementation of a gold plan in 12 years. The average annual cost of
implementation is $141K. The odd (maintenance) years have an average annual cost of $93K, and the
even years have anaverage annual cost of $209K. It is projected that after this TIP is completed, the

Table I — Proposed Annual Allocations and Expenses

E

$36,500

$202,000

annual maintenance expense will be reduced to $50K to $60K per year with little
construction needed. The summary of annual expense allocations is detailed in th

to no additional
e following table:

Allocation

2016

100% 0%

$ii,ooo

Allocation

0% 0%

2017

11% 75%

$20,000 $130,500

$0 $0 $11,000 $25,500 $0

11% 2%

$19,500 $4000 $174,000 $10,000 $18,000

‘ I I I
Allocation . HMACP . Construction Engineering!

. Total
Maintenance Drainage Safety . . . Contingency Annual/Vear Overlay Total investigaton

Expense

Allocation 95% 0% 0% 5%

2018 $72,081 $4000 $76,031 $26,440 $9,352 $112,373

[Allocation 9% 79% 9% 2%

2019 $20,000 $168,000 $20,000 $4000 $212,000 $10,000 $21,800 $243,800

Allocation 95% 0% 0% 5%

2020 $79,337 $4000 $33,337 $26,600 $10,594 $120,530

AIlocatiq!L 9% 82% 9% 0%
zon $20,000 $182,000 $20,000 $222,000 $10,000 $23,200 $255,200

Allocation 100% 0% 0% 0%
2022 $76,752

— $76,752 $25,000 $10,175 $111,927

Allocation 9% 82% 9% 0%

i 2OJ $20,000 $181,500 $20,000 $221,500 $10,000 $23,150 $254,650

I Allocation 100% 0% 0% I



$73,058 I I I $73,058 I $25,000 $9,206 j $107,864

In table 1, the proposed annual expense and related allocation breakdown per expense category are
summarized for each year from 2016 through 2026. By year 2027 under this plan, all Local and
Collector functional classes of road will have been improved to include drainage and surfacing
improvements as indicated. After these improvements are in place, the annual maintenance expense
will be reduced to something on the order of the expenses shown in year 2026. This should be the
expectation for maintenance expenses for the foreseeable future. The basis of the costs identified in
Table I. is shown in Table 2:

Table 2 - Proposed Annual Expenses

2024

Allocation 12% 77% 12% 0% I
2025 $20,000 $132,000 $20,000 $172,000 $10,000 $18,200 $200,200

Allocation 100% 0% 0% 0%
2026 $74,241 $0 $74,241 $0 $8,136 $823T1

Allocation 84% 16% 0%
2027 $52,735 $10,000 $62,735 $0 $0 $62,735

Design Engineering for 2016

2016

L
Unit

w cost

Pavement borin on Champions Cir and Brookmeadow

Exi

$25,000

$500

2017

Brookhollow from Woodcreek to Augusta

Drainage

H MACP

Maintenance

4350 20 1.5 5130,500

$19,500

$20,000

Contract Adrninistratbn / Constri,iction rspection $10,000



Augusta Drive from Brookhollow to Brookhollow

Augusta Lane

Jack Miller

Overbrook Ct

Design Engineering

Utility investigation (36 lots @ $40/lot)

Contingency (10%)

total allocation

2019

Woodcreek from Champions Circle to Brookhoilow

Woodcreek from Champions Circle to Brookhollow

Drainage

Mantenance

Contingency (10%)

total allocation

Activity L
Unit

W cost Exp

2018

$18,000

$198,000

Chip Seal

Chip Seal

Crack Seal

Crack Seal

3700

1500

620

770

18 0.73

18 0.73

18 0,15

18 0.15

$48,618

$19,710

$1,674

$2,079

$25,000

$1,440

$9,852

reconstruct

HMACP

2400

2400

20

20

2 $96,000

1.5 $72,000

$20,000

Contract Administraton / Construction Inspection

Contingency (10%)

totai allocation

$20,000

$10,000

$21,800

$239,800



2021

Woodcreek from Brookhollow to Champions Circle

\Noodcreek from Brookhollow to Champions Circle

Drainage

Maintenance

Contract Administration / Construction Inspection

Contingency (10%)

$31,536

$36,792

$8,147

$2,862

$25,000

$1,600

$20,000

$20,000

Activity L
Unit

W cost

2020

Augusta Drive from Brookhollow to end

Dolittle Dr

Exp

r

Chip Seal

Chip Seal

Chic Seal

crack Seal

2400

2800

620

1060

18

18

18

18

Jack Mille

Wilson Circle

Design Engineering

Utility investigation (40 lots @ $40/lot)

Contingency (10%)

073

0.73

073

0.15

totai allocation

$10,594

$116,530

reconstruct

N MA C P

2600

2600

20

20

2

1.5

$104,000

$78,000

$10,000

$23,200

total aHocation



20 1.5 $58,500

20 1.5 $123,000

Drainage $20,000

Maintenance $20,000

Contract Administration! Construction Inspection S10,000

Contingency (10%) $23,150

total allocation

Activity
Unit

L W cost

2022

Ex p

Westwood Dr from Brookhollow to Pebblebrook

Pebblebrook from end to end

Stonehouse from woodcreek to end

Treemont Trace from Woodcreek to end

Chip

Chip

Chip

Chip

Chip

Chip

Seal

Seal

Seal

Seal

Seal

Seal

1060

2070

800

600

350

1200

18 0.73

18 0.73

18 0.73

16 0.73

16 0.73

16 0.73

$13,928

$27,200

$10,512

$7,008

$4,088

$14,016

$25,000

Par Circle

Par View

Design Engineering

Futility investigation (0 lots @ $40/lot)

Contingency (10%)

total allocation

$0

2023

$10,175

Champions from Woodcreek to Overlook

Brookmeadow

HMACP

HMACP

1950

4100



Unit
Activity L W cost

2024

Cypress Point

Dee rfie d

Exp

Country Lane

Shady Grove

Chip Seal

Chip Seal

Chip Seal

Chip Seal

1700

1200

1400

1260

18

18

18

18

0.73

0.73

0.73

0.73

$22,338

$15,763

$13,396

$16,556

Design Engineering

Utiiity investigation (0 lots @ $40/lot)

Contingency (10%)

total allocation

$25000

$0

2025

$9,806

$107,864

Champions from Overlook to Champions CT

Champions CT

Drainage

H MACP 3400

HMACP

20

Maintenance

1000

1.5

1.520

$102,000

$30,000

S20,000

Contract Administration / Construction Inspection

Contingency (10%)

total allocation

520,000

$10,000

$18,200

$200,200



Unit

W cost Exp

Assumptions/notes:
1. All costs were developed on a baseline 1/1/2015 budget.
2. Reconstruction costs were based on statewide averages.
3. County force expenses were based on data provided by Hays County.
4. Over the life of the TIP, costs will rise and fail. As the changes in price affect the implementation

schedule, the TIP should be updated to reflect those revisions.

Activity L

2026

Canyon Creek

Palmer Lane

Wilson Circle

Wildwood Circle

Spaiding Circle

McGregor Circle

Design Engineering

Utility investigation (0 lots @ $40/lot)

Contingency (10%)

total allocation

Chip Seal 1960 18 0.73 $25,754

Chip Seal 1750 18 0.73 $22,995

Chip Seal 1060 18 0.73 $13,928

Chip Seal 880 18 0.73 $11,563

Chip Seal 400 15 0.73 S4,380

Chip Seal 250 15 0.73 $2,738

so

$0

58,136

Annual Chip Seal

2027

Annualized Chip Seal expense based on 10 year occurrence

$48,160

$52,735



- SUMMARY

A program based approached to maintenance and improvement of transportation facilities should
include the following components:
Roadway Classification: It is critical to planning to separate infrastructure by purpose. Local roads
provide access while collector roads collect traffic from local roads and connect to arterials. It is
recommended that City streets be classified as Low Volume Local, Local, and Collector. For the purposes
of this study, Brookhollow Drive, Woodcreek Drive, Brookmeadow Drive, and Champions Circle have been
designated as Collector facilities. No criteria to segregate Low Volume Local from Local have been
established. The City should develop these criteria as part of further transportation improvement efforts.
Safety: It is recommended that the City develop and adopt policies addressing potential safety hazards in
City ROW, including: fixed objects — mailboxes, landscaping structures, large trees, etc.; landscaping —

Maintenance required to maintain clear intersections, installation of new landscaping in intersection
sight triangles. In areas where these safety concerns are not readily resolved, warning signage may be
warranted.
Maintenance: All local and low volume local facilities are programmed to have maintenance over the 10
year transportation plan. Maintenance efforts will include overlaying the road with a seal coat (or chip
seal), sealing cracks, re-establishing pavement edge (where the edge of pavement is eroding), and
potentially widening the facility to an acceptable minimum width. This maintenance is presumed to be
performed by Hays County forces. Minimum roadway acceptable widths will need to be defined as part of
the roadway classification effort. As the classification process has not been completed, no widening
efforts have been included in maintenance efforts. In addition, there is no current plan for drainage
improvements related to maintenance efforts. However, there are drainage improvements needed on
everal of the Low Volume Local and Local roads. It is recommended that the City consider adding City
wide drainage maintenance and improvement to the Transportation Plan efforts.
Imnrovement: City streets identified as Collectors are programmed to have improvements including
restoration of minimum width, restoration of roadway crown, improved drainage features, warranted
safety improvements, development of a pavement structure (with strength sufficient for expected traffic
volumes), and Hot Mix Asphaltic Concrete Pavement overlay. In order to accomplish these
improvements, the City will need to contract with an Engineer to develop construction plans, assist with
contract procurement, and confirm contract compliance. The engineer should address safety, drainage,
and roadway design elements as part of the design. As part of this design effort, additional geotechnical
investigations and pavement design efforts will likely be required. The current approach to improvements
is based on beginning improvement efforts in locations where water line restoration has been completed.
Woodcreek Drive has need for maintenance and improvement. Apparently, there is a water line located
longitudinally in Woodcreek Drive that will need to be restored. Improvements to Woodcreek Drive have
been delayed in the program in order to allow water line restoration prior to roadway reconstruction.
While the current state of Woodcreek Drive is not optimal, if waterline restoration can be accomplished
within the three years currently identified, no interim maintenance should be needed. However, if
improvements to Woodcreek Drive are delayed by waterline improvements, this assumption may need
review.

The City has committed substantial resources to studying the roadway network. This Transportation Plan
has been developed as part of that effort. Moving forward, the City should review this plan, propose any
revisions desired, and then begin Plan implementation. Implementation will require the development of
‘ransportation Facility Policy. The effort to develop and implement appropriate policy will reduce City risk

-. and provide a safer transportation network. Policy issues to address include Safety policies, Drainage



- iolicies, and Maintenance policies. In addition to policy development, the City will need to monitor the
irogress of this plan and adjust the plan as unforeseen issues arise and affect the Plan.



TA
j7

.3

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

O
F

I-
lA

Y
S

C
O

U
N

T
Y

R
O

A
D

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
S*

en
-a

g
e

D
ai

ly
T

ra
ff

ic
(o

n
e
-w

a
y

tr
ip

s)
k
*

1
r
e
t
l
i
a
n
l
o
O

10
1-

10
00

1
0
0
1
-2

5
0
0

j
2
5
0
1
-5

0
0
0

50
01

-1
50

00
M

or
e

th
an

15
00

0

ic
ct

io
na

l
C

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
C

ou
nt

r
L

an
e

L
oc

al
S

tr
ee

t
M

in
or

C
ol

le
ct

or
I_

ii
rC

o
1
Ie

c
to

r
j

4
in

p
rA

rt
e
ri

a
L

J
M

aj
or

A
rt

er
ia

l

;iu
gn

S
pe

ed
25

m
ph

35
m

ph
L

45
m

ph
55

m
ph

ii
ib

er
of

L
an

es
2

2
2

I
2

4
A

ll
el

em
en

ts

W
W

id
th

50
60

60
’

70
’

10
0’

in
cl

u
d
in

g

ltI
h

of
T

ra
ve

le
d

w
ay

18
’

20
’

24
’

48
’

g
eo

m
et

ri
c

ltI
h

of
S

ho
ul

de
rs

2’
4’

5’
6’

8’
la

y
o
u
t

an
d

ir
m

um
C

en
te

rl
in

e
R

ad
iu

s
20

0’
30

0’
37

5’
67

5’
97

5’
c
ro

ss
-s

e
c
ti

o
n

ir
m

um
T

an
ge

nt
L

en
gt

h
b
et

w
ee

n
R

ev
er

se

vi
es

or
C

om
po

un
d

C
ur

ve
s

50
’

10
0’

15
0’

30
0’

50
0’

sh
a
ll

h
e

ap
p
ro

v
ed

ir
ni

um
R

ad
iu

s
fo

r
E

dg
e

of
P

av
em

en
t

at
25

’
25

’
25

’
I

25
’

25
’

b
y

th
e

rr
se

ct
io

ns
I

I

rr
se

ct
io

n
S

tr
ee

t
A

le
80

-1
00

J
80

-1
00

80
-1

00
80

-1
00

80
-1

00
R

o
ad

D
ir

ec
to

r

di
m

un
i

G
ra

de
:

11
%

11
%

10
%

9%
8%

o
n

a
c
a
se

-b
y
-c

a
se

ir
m

um
S

tr
ee

t
C

en
te

rl
in

e
O

ff
ec

t
at

A
dj

ac
en

t
I

ns
ec

li
on

s
12

5’
J

12
5’

12
5’

12
5’

12
5’

b
as

is
.

irr
nu

rn
S

to
pp

in
g

S
ig

ht
D

is
ta

nc
e

17
5’

J
17

5’
25

0’
35

0’
55

0’

irr
nu

m
In

te
rs

ec
ti

on
S

ig
ht

D
is

ta
nc

e
25

0’
25

0’
35

0’
45

0’
55

0’

hi
F

or
es

lo
pe

G
ra

d
e

4:
01

J_
4:

01
5:

01
5:

01
6:

01

hi
B

ac
ks

lo
pe

G
ra

de
3:

01
0
1

4:
01

4:
01

4:
01

ir
rn

un
i

C
ul

-d
e-

sa
c

R
O

W
R

ad
iu

s
00

’
65

’
65

’
65

’
65

’

ir
m

um
C

ul
-d

e-
sa

c
P

av
em

en
t

R
ad

iu
s

35
’

45
’

45
’

45
’

.e
s:

y9
de

vi
at

io
n

fr
om

th
es

e
st

an
d

ar
d

s
m

u
s
t

be
th

e
su

bj
ec

t
of

an
ap

pr
ov

ed
va

ri
an

ce
.

,ts
s

th
at

ar
e

re
st

ri
ct

ed
by

pt
at

no
te

to
on

e
si

ng
te

-f
an

ii
ly

re
si

d
en

ce
sh

al
l

be
p
ie

su
m

ed
to

ge
ne

ra
te

10
on

e-
w

ay
tr

ip
s

pe
r

da
y.

A
ve

ra
ge

da
ity

tr
af

tic
to

r
al

l
ot

he
r

lo
ts

sh
al

l
be

de
te

rm
in

ed
on

a

.W
y-

ca
se

ba
si

s
by

th
e

R
oa

d
D

ir
ec

to
r.

cc
as

io
na

t
sh

or
t

ru
ns

be
tw

ee
n

in
te

rs
ec

ti
on

s
ni

ay
ex

ce
ed

th
e

am
ou

nt
s

sh
ow

n
bu

t
m

ax
im

um
gr

ad
es

th
ro

ug
h

in
te

rs
ec

ti
on

s
m

ay
no

t
ex

ce
ed

th
e

am
ou

nt
s

sh
ow

n.

es
en

tir
e

si
de

di
tc

h
sh

al
t

be
to

ta
lty

co
nt

ai
ne

d
w

ilh
in

th
e

ro
ad

ri
gh

t-
of

-w
ay

or
a

de
di

ca
te

d
dr

ai
na

ge
ea

se
m

en
t.

G
ri

ar
dr

ai
ls

w
ill

be
re

qu
ir

ed
.

)
rc

u!
-d

e-
sa

c
sh

at
i

ha
ve

a
cr

os
s

st
op

s
th

at
ex

ce
ed

s
6

pe
rc

en
t.

I
I

-

I
sw

eg
et

al
io

n
of

di
st

ur
be

d
ar

ea
s

w
ith

in
ne

w
ro

ad
ri

gh
ts

of
w

ay
is

re
qu

ir
ed

w
he

re
ih

e
di

tc
h

ue
pt

h
ex

ce
ed

s
8’

-0
’

fr
om

th
e

ed
ge

oI
sh

ou
ld

er
to

bo
tl

on
i

of
di

tc
h

on
co

un
tr

y
L

an
es

an
d

L
oc

al
S

tr
ee

ts
:

tr
ro

m
ed

ge
ot

sh
ou

ld
er

to
bo

tt
om

of
di

tc
h

on
M

in
or

co
ll

ec
to

rs
,

ar
id

4-
0”

fr
om

ed
ri

e
of

sh
ou

ld
er

to
bo

tto
m

of
di

tc
h

on
M

aj
or

C
ol

le
ct

or
s

an
d

M
in

or
A

ri
er

ia
ls

.
I

I
id

du
at

dr
iv

ew
ay

en
ir

an
ce

s,
if

no
t

sh
ow

n
on

th
e

ap
p
ro

v
ed

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

s
pl

an
s,

m
us

t
he

ap
pi

cv
ed

by
lie

R
oa

d
D

ir
ec

lo
r.

M
ax

im
um

sp
ac

in
g

be
iw

ee
n

co
rn

m
er

ic
al

dr
iv

ew
ay

s
or

cu
rb

cu
ts

is
15

0
ft.

y
-e

n
d

tr
ea

lm
en

is
re

qu
ir

ed
on

al
l

dr
iv

ew
ay

s.
tM

in
im

un
i

6:
1_

sl
op

e)
I

I
I

I
e
si

g
n

st
an

da
rd

s
m

ay
be

m
od

if
ie

d
on

a
ca

se
-b

y
-c

as
e

ba
si

s
as

ea
ch

pr
oj

ec
t

m
er

it
s

de
pe

nd
in

g
up

on
to

po
gr

ap
hy

an
d

ot
he

r
pe

rt
in

en
t

fe
at

ur
es

.
T

hi
s

is
lo

in
cl

ud
e

po
ss

ib
le

w
id

er
R

O
W

s
w

he
n

ii
e
d

ba
cl

cs
to

pe
s

w
ilt

no
t

fit
w

ilh
iin

st
an

d
ar

d
R

O
W

.
I

J..
...

.
I

I
hi

lly
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
&

de
si

gn
,

if
in

te
nd

ed
to

be
un

de
rg

ro
un

d,
w

ill
ne

ed
to

be
co

or
di

na
te

d
w

ith
th

e
co

un
ty

R
oa

d
D

ep
t.

It
pl

ac
em

en
t

of
ut

ili
tie

s
is

to
be

in
co

un
ty

R
O

W
,

an
ad

di
ti

on
al

IC
’

of
R

O
W

w
ill

be

es
d.

I
I

I
:
r.r

oa
d

an
d

dr
ai

na
ge

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

m
ay

be
gi

n
un

til
a

se
t

of
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
an

d
dr

ai
na

ge
pl

an
s

ha
ve

be
en

ap
pr

ov
ed

by
th

e
co

ta
fly

R
oa

d
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.

ew
en

ty
-T

w
o

t7
2)

ho
ur

s
be

fo
re

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n

is
to

be
gi

n
a

pr
ec

on
si

ru
ct

io
n

m
ee

ti
ng

is
re

qu
ir

ed
to

be
fi

el
d.

C
on

ta
ct

th
e

C
ou

nt
y

R
oa

d
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
(o

r
sc

he
du

li
ng

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

H



CITY OF WOODCREEK, TEXAS STREET EVALUATION

Submitted to:

Department of Public Works

City of \Voodcreelc, Texas

A S S C C AT S

4201 Freidrich Lane, Suite 110

Austin, Texas 78744

REPORT NO. AP-12-16841
October 27, 2014



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION i
2. PAVEMENT NETWORK INVENTORY 1
3. VISUAL CONDITION SURVEYS 1
4. MAINTENANCE, REHABILITATION & RECONSTRUCTION PLANS 6
5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 7
6. REFERENCES S

APPENDIX

Deducdon Values Appendix A
Pavement Conditon Scores by Block Appendix B
Deflemon Plots ppendix C
MODULUS Outputs Appendix D



1. INTRODUCTION

Road detetioration is a constant force that causes road quality to decline based on constant
traffic and environmental loads. HVJ Associates, Inc. (1-fVJ) was contracted to conduct
pavement ratings and evaluate the current needs of the City of \Voodcreek, Texas. All
pavements sections in the City have been evaluated using HVJ pavement condition rating
procedures [Ref. 1]. The following project tasks have been completed:

• Collect visual condition survey data on all street sectons within the mameenance
responsibility of the City of Woodcreek, Texas to obtain individual pavement distress
ratings for determining an overall Pavement Condition Rating (PCR).

• Provide condition assessment report with summary statistics of our Endings.

• Esumate maintenance and rehabilitation costs.

Based on the City maintenance responsibility and Google Earth, it is estimated that the City
of Woodcmeek is composed of approximately 85 sections and approximately 10 centerhne
miles. i-TVj staff completed a 100% visuol pa.vetnent condition survey of the City of
Woodcreek maintained streets to determine the Pavement Condition Rating (PCR) of each
section. The surveys were conducted by trained HNJJ staff using the HVT condition survey
procedures used in multiple Texas cities. Surveys will provide the City with information
regarding the current condition of the streets and the potennal repairs that will need to be
performed. I-IVJ’s assessment included in this report of the streets within the system will
improve the City’s ability to estimate fuwre repair requirements, plan maintenance and
rehabilitation programs and to estimate street funding needs. The City of Woodcreek
network average condition assessment score yielded a value of 83 on a scale of 0 to 100.

2. PAVEMENT NETWORK INVENTORY
Currently the City of Woodcreek street inventory consists of approximately 10 centerline
allies, which are maintained by the city. The pavement network inventory was based on the
city website and a field visit with city staff. Based on the listing, HVJ Associates, Inc.
identified and surveyed 159 street sections. Based on the field surveys and length estimauons
from Google Earth, the following network inventory was determined; quanmies, functional
classification area. number of sections, and section length:

Qu2ntiues
Table 1: Inventory Quantides

Item Collector Local Total

Total Center Line Miles 2.0 8.0 10.0

Total Lane Miles 4.0 16.0 20.0

3. VISUAL CONDITION SURVEYS
Visual pavement condition surveys were collected the on September 26, 2014. Trained field
raters used the pavement rating process to perform the field surveys of each individual street
segment. The number of lanes and roadway width were collected and measured for each
segment. as well.

All surveys were performed in accordance with the I-IVJ Vlsuri Condition Survey Guidelines
(Ref 1). The city network predorniriandy has flexible streets with a few areas patched with
ngid Portland cement concrete (PCC), thus the following distresses were evaluated:

I



Fleble or Composite Pavements

• Wheelpath Rutting

• Fatigue Alligator) Cracking

• Transverse Craclang

• Longitudinal Cracking

• Pavement Failures (Patches and Potholes)

• Utiui Cu: Patches,

• Edge Cracking

• Raveling (‘Weathering) and

• Ride Quality

For each of the individual pavement distresses identified for flexible pavements, the surveyor
rates seventy and extent. The toiowing is a typical descupuon tram the Condtuon Survey
Rating Guide for surface deterioration distress:

Alligator cracking is a series of interconnecting cracks caused by fatigue failure of the asphalt
pavement under repeated traffic loading. The cracks initiate at the bottom of the asphalt
surface and propagate to the surface, initially as one or more longitudinal parallel cracks.
After repeated traffic loading, the cracks interconnect; and form many-sided, sharp angled
pieces which are usually less than 1 ft. or. the longest side gtor cracking commonly
occurs in areas subjected to repeated traffic loading, such as the wheel paths. The distress is
rated based on its severity and extent within a length of pavement. Rate the most prevalent
seventy tevel.

Severity: Based on the worst alligator cracking encountered, the severity is
defined as follows:

Slight — Fine. longItudinal cracks running parallel to each other with
none or only a few interconnecting cracks. Most cracks are less than
t/’) wide.

Moderate — Progression of cracks into chicken wire or alligator skin
pattern. Cracks may be up to 1/2 wide but pieces are still intact.
Extreme — Further progression of cracking in such a way that widths
are generally more than ½” wide. Cracks may be spalled. or flaked, at
the edges. Pavement pieces may be loosened, shift or rock under
trafflc, or may be missing.

Extent: Estimate the extent of surface deterioration in the worst area of the
segment.

Localized — 1-15% of secuon length is affected.

Interminent — 16-30% of section length is affected.

Prevalent — > 30% of section length is affected.

‘7



present.
The rater selects the appropriate description entry based on the severity and extent

Table 2: Severity and Extent Levels
EXTENT

Localized Intermittent Prevalent
1-15°/o 16-30% >3Q0/

Slight 1 2 3
> Moderate 4 5 6

‘
Extreme 7 8 9

Once all the data are recorded for each distress, the information is used to calculate the
current pavement condition rating (PCR values).

Caiculanon of PCR

Based on the level of severity and extent of each distress identifled as present on the street. a
number of deduct points are assigne& The scnmauon of these deduct points is subtracted
from a perfect score of 100 to estimate the current pavement condition rating (2CR). This
PCR value provides a relative condition assessment for each pavement section. The
deduction points assigned to each distress at each severity/extent level are provided in
Appendis A.

The pavement condinon rating PCR) value provides a uniform and systematrc method to
describe the overall condition of a street’s pavement. The following is are the ranges are
typically used for Collector and Local streets.

Table 3: PCR Ranges for Local and Minor Collector Sectons
Collector Condition Local

0-50 Very Poor 0-30
51-65 Poor 31-50
66-80 Faix 51-65
81- 90 Good 66-80
91-100 Very Good 81-100

The PCR value is on a scale of 0 to 100, with a newly constructed pavement having a score
of 100. while a score of 0 indicates a pavement with many severe distress conditions.

Pavement Condition Rann RCR) Dismbution

The current average network PCR score for the City of Woodcreek is 83 indicaung an
overail good condition. The overall distribution of PCR ratings for local sections is provided
in Table 4 and Figure 1. The overall disenbution of PCR ratin&s for collector streets is
provided in Table S and Figure 2. While these statistics show a ma;orirv of the pavements are
in good condition, there are poor and very poor streets, which currently need rehabilitation.
Also, the pavements which are in fair condition will corinnue to detenorate at an increased
rate if rehabilitaton is not performed.

.3



Table 4: PCR Distribution for Local Streets in Centerline Miles

PCR Local- % ofCondition
Range HMAC TOTAL

Very Poor 0-30 0.0 0.0%
Poor 31-50 0.3 3.7%
Fair 51-65 0.4 5.2%
Good 66-30 2.5 30.4%
Very Good 81-100 4.9 50.7%

TOTAL 8.1

Local-HMAC

—----- --

—-7-—----- -----

-

Very Poor Fcc Good Very Gccd
PCR Rnze

Figure 1: PCR Distribution for Local Streets

4



Streets classified at Collectors include, Brookhollow Dr., and Woodcreek Dr.

Table 5: PCR Distribution for Minor Collectors in Centerline Miles

. PCR Collector- % ofConthton
Range HMAC TOTAL

Very Poor 0-50 0.0 0.0%
Poor 51-65 0.0 0.0%
Pait 66-80 0.2 12.2%
Good 81-90 1.1 55.8%
Very Good 91-100 0.6 32.0%

TOTAL 1.9

Collector-HMAC

1 -‘

1 1 —

u.n

uS

— 0.1

0.2

I —

— I_—.I I 5l-53 65-50

Very Fcc:

FCR Psoae

Figure 2: PCR Distribution for Collectors

-

Qcr-cj

)



4. MAINTENANCE, REHABILITATION & RECONSTRUCTION PLANS

MR&R Esmate Methodology
The visual condidon survey 2CR value is used to assign a recommended repair method for
each street secrioc within de street network of the City of Woodcreek based on the
individual distresses. Projects should be evaluated on a derailed level prior to
repairs/reconstrucrion. Due to Funding avaikbthty, Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete (HMAC)
surface is not a viable reconstrucuon ophon and therefore HVJ recommends a two-course
and one-course surface treatment be used in the case of teconstrucdon of collector and local
reconstruction, respectively. Additionally, a one-course treatment is recommended as a
treatment option for the streets in poor condition that have not yet reached the very poor,
reconstruction stage. Edge craciting and fatigue cracting were the maor distresses noted
throughout the city. It is recommended that before any treatment is performed, crack sealing
and edge repair be performed to protect the integrity of the repairs.
Previous Repairs performed by the City include reconstruction and resurfacing.
The 5nai recommended repair for each segment is selected cased on the exisung 2CR score
and the pavement Functional classification (Collector or Local) using the following
assignments for the City of Woodcreek.

A summary of the individual scores and recommended treatments can be found in Appendix
B.

Table 6: Flexible Pavement Repair Table Based on Pavement Condion Rating (PCR) Score

PCR Improved PCR

Ranoe Treatment Category After Funding of
Treatment

HMAC Minor Collector

250 I RECONSTRUCTION WiTH IWO-COURSE
wn

. SURFACE TREPThIENT & EDGE REPAIR
CRACK SEAL AND ONE-COURSE

51 -65 SURFACE TREATMENT AND EDGE 100
REPAIR

66-80 CRACK SEAL AND EDGE REPAiR 95
81-90 CRACK SEAL 90
91100 DO NOTHING n/a

HMAC Local

. .. RECONSTRUCTION \VITH IWO-COURSE
Il_DU 12SURFACE TREAThIENT & EDGE REPAIR

t CRACK SEAL AND 0\T-CORSE
31-50 SURFACE TREATMENT AND EDGE 100

REPAIR

5 1-65 CRACK SEAL AND EDGE REPAIR 95
66-80 CRACK SEAL J 83
81-100 DO NOTHING n/a

6



Existir.g Srzreno’th Values

Non-destructive deflection testing was also performed on all streets in the City of
Woodcreek to evaluate the relative strength of the existing pavement layers. These
measurements provide relative information regarding variations in the subgrade soil and the
existing flexible base and asphalt pavement layers. I-fVJ tested at 200 ft. spacing along the
collector streets Brookhollow Dr. and Woodcreek Dr. and every 400 ft. on the remaining
local streets with at least one point per street.

Deflection proffles and a surnniary of the average subgrade (WI) and surface (W7). deflection
values for each street are included in Appendix C.

Woodcreek and Brookhoiow Drives indicated surface modulus values of 70,300 to 74,300
psi for the asphalt surface, a base modulus of 25,500 to 47,000 psi for the flexible base and a
subrade modulus of 29.600 to 37,200 psi. The surface and base moduli fall within the
typical ranges for the material types. The subgrade modulus indicates a very strong subgrade
giving good support to the pavement layers above. Outputs from the analysis program
MODULUS are given in Appendix D.

The remaining local streets demonstrate a relatively high level of variation in the deflection
along the existing pavement on most of the streets which can be due to a number of
conditions, such as: varying cross section thickness and layer materials, varying depth of the
harder limestone layer, weak areas in the underlying subgrade, existing pavement cracking,
etc. Analysis of the average surface and subgrade defiectons in comparison to Brookhoiow
and Woodcreek indicate that the majority of the streets demonstrate comparable
charactenstics to the main streets. The exceptions to this are Canyon Cit., Elmbrook,
Garuson Trl., Palmer, Woodview Ct., and Brookside (FCC section) which show higher
subgrade deflections and Canyon Cii., Country Ct., Elmbrook, Garrison Trl., and Wildwood
Cix. which demonstrate higher surface deflections indicating weaker areas A summary of the
average subgrade (Wi) and surface (W7) deflection values for each street are included in
Appendix C.

5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Based on the razed condition, post repair PCR and the classification (collector or local) of
the sections, FfV has assigned a priority ranisting to each street with I being the highest
pnority. It is recommended that repairs be done on a street by street basis, or by combining
multiple nearby smaller streets to potennally aid in the reduction of construction
mobilization and cost. Recommended priority by street is shown in Appendix B.

7



6. REFERENCES

I Street S4ace condition and Inventog’ Rating Guidelines

8



APPENDIX A

DEDUCTION VALUES



V

C

cit

C

I

C

U

V

V

V

>
U
—

V

C

V

4-J

0

p-_-
‘- —— — r

Ut
c1— I

r

V
.1

V
>
U

U
V

LU

4.2

C)

U
(n



APPENDIX B

Pavement Condidon Scores by Block



Street From To PCR CtASS TREATMENT Priority
Augusta Dr. End Brookhollow Dr. 95 L Do Nothing
Augusta Cr. Ero&thollcw Dr. Augusta In. 98 L Co Nothng
Augusta Dr. Augusta Li,. Brookrneadow Dr. 98 1 Do Nothing
Augusta Dr. Brookmeadow Dr. Augusta Ln. 98 L Do Nothing
Augusta Dr. Augusta In. Srookhollow Dr. 82 L Do Nothing
Augusta In. Augusta Dr. Augusta Dr. 75 L Crack Seal 1].
Brookhoflow Spur Wocdcreek Dr. Brookhollow Or. 92 C Do Nothing
Brookhcllow Dc Woodcreek Dr. Srookhoiiow Spur % C Do Nothing
Brookhoiiow Dr. Brcckho;llowSpur West,vood Dr. 82 C CrackSeal
Erookholiow Dr. Westwood Dr. Qverbrook Ct. 85 C CrackSea
Brookhoilow Dr. Qverbrook Ct. Par Ci 87 C Crack Seal 16
Brookhollow Dr. Par Cir. Augusta Dr. 88 C CrackSeal
Brookhollow Dr. Augusta Dr. Jack Miller Dr. 93 C Do Nothing
Brookhollow Dr. Jack Miller Dr. Country In. 87 C Crack Seal
Brookhollow Dr. Country Ln. Augusta Dr. 85 C Crack Seal
Brookmeadcw Dr. Augjsta Dr. Shady Grove In. 95 L Do Nothirg
Brookmeadow Dr. Shady Stove Ln. Brookside Dr. 90 L Do Nothing
Brookrneadcv Dr. Erookside Dr. E!rnbrcok Dr. 93 L Do Nothing
Erookn-ieadow Dr. Ettobrook Dr. Villa Meadow 97 1 Do Nothing
Brookn,eadow Dr. Villa Meadow SH 12 95 L Do Nothing
Brookside Dr.N Brookmeadow Dr. End 85 L Do Nothing

19Brookside Dr-S Brookmeadow Dr. End SQL CrackSeal
Canyon Cir. Canyon Creek Dr. End 741 Crack Seal 10
Canyon Creek Dr. Charncior,sCir. Garrison Tral 83 1 Do Nothing
Canyon Creek Dr. Garrison. trail WcodviewCt. 83 1 Do Notnrg
Canyon Creek Dr. Woodview Ct. Woodridge Cir 81 1 Do Nothing
Canyon Creek Or. WcodhdgeCir. Canyon Cr. 83 1 Do Nothing
Canyon Creek Dr. Canyon Cir. End 83 1 Do Nothing
Champion Ct. Champions Cir. End 82 1 Do Nothing
Champions Cir, Woodcreek Dr. Overlook Ct. 95 1 Do Nothing
Champions Cir. OverlookCt. Palmer In. 95 1 Do Nothing
Champions Cir. Palmer Ln. Palmer In. 97 L Do Nothing
Champions Cir. °almer In. Canyon Creek Dr. 961 Do Nothing
ChampionsC;r. Canyon CreekDr. PaflbrookCir 931 Do Notdng
ChampionsCir. :allbrcok Cr. Champions Ct. 35 1 Do Nothing
cnarnpions Cii. Champions Cl. TrernontTrce 97 1 Do Nothing
Champions Cir. Iremont Trce ‘Noodcreek Dr. 97 L Do Nothing
Country Ct. Country Ln. End 85 1 Do Nothing
Country In. Brookhollow Dr. Country Ct. 87 1 Do Nothing

17Country In. Country Cl. End 741 Crack Seal
Cycress Point Woodcreek Dr. Cypress Point 7D I Crackseal
Cypress Poir.t Cypress Point Cypress Point 52 I Crack Seal
Cypress Point Cypress Point Cypress Point 85 1 Do Nothing

——

Cypress °c;nt Cypress Point End 701 CrarkSea



Priority
Street From To PCR CLASS TREATMENT
Deerfield Dr. Woodcreek Dr. End 971 Do Nothing
Doolittle Dr. South Cypress Point Jack Miller Dr. 39 L Crack seal and One-Course Surface Treatmentwith Edge Repair
Doolittle Dr. North Jack Miller Wildwood Cir. 75 L Crack Seal
Elrnbrook Dr. Srockmeadow Dr. End 85 L Do Nothing
Garriscn Trail Canyon Creek Dr. End 80 I. Crack Seal 15
Jack Mifler Dr. Doolittle Dr Brookhoilow Dr. 59 L Crack Seal and Edge Repair 1
McGregorCir. SoaldingCir. End 78 . CrackSeal
Overbrook CI. Srooknollow Dr. End SB 1. Crack Seal and Edge Repair
Overlook CI. Champions Cir. Overlook Ct. 72 L Crack Seal
Overlook Ct. End End 74 L Crack Seal
Palmer Ln. Champions Cir. Wilson Cir. 85 L Do Nothing
Palmer Ln. Wilson Cir. Champions Cir. 85 L Do Nothing
ParCir. Brookhollow Dr. End 791. Crack Seal 14
Par View Dr. Woodcreek Dr. End 74 1. Crack Seal 9
Pebblebrook Ln.-E End Vestwood Dr. 70 L Crack Seal

7Pebblebrock Ln.-W Westwood Dr. End 73 L Crack Seal
Shady Grove Ln.-S Brookrneadow Dr. End 77 1 Crack Seal

12Shady Grove Ln.N Srookrneadow Dr. End 98 L Do Nothing
Spalding Cir. Wilson Cr. McGregor Cir. 881. Do Nothing

18Spalding Cir. McGregor Cir. End 76 L Crack Seal
Stonehouse Cr. Woodcreek Dr. End 70 L Crack Seal 6
Tremont Trace Champions Cir. End 681. Crack Seal S
Westwood Dr. Pebblebrook Ln. Drookhoilow Dr. 77 1. Crack Seal 12
Wildwood Cir. Doolittle Dr Doolittle Dr. 81 L Do Nothing
Wilson Cr. Palmer En. Spalding Cir. 65 L Crack Seal and Edge Repair
W1lson Cir. SoaidingCir. End 741 Crack Seal

—

Woodcreek Dr SH 12 Deerfie!d Dr. 98 C Do Nothing
Woodcreek Dr Deerfield Dr. Par View Dr. 97 C Do Nothing
Woodcreek Dr ParView Dr. Stonehouse Cir. 95 C Do Nothing
Woodcreek Dr Stonehcuse Cir. 2rockhollow Dr. 73 C Crack Seal and Edge Repar

4Woodcreek Dr Brookhollow Dr. Brookhollow Dr. 96 C Do Nothing
Woodcreek Dr Rrookhollow Dr. Pro En. 87 C Crack Seal
‘Noodcreek Dr Pro En. Champions Cir. 93 C Do Nothing
Woodcreek Dr Champions Cir. Cypress Point 74 C Crack Seal and Edge Repair
Woodridge Cir. Canyon Creek Dr. End 781. Crack Seal 13
Woodview Cl. Canyon Creek Dr. End 81 L Do Nothing



APPENDIX C

Defiecfion Profiles



WiDeflectionunder9,000lbLoad(inNs)
—LflU’-40 pp00ppoopp

oobboobboo oa0000C000

3+00-————------------—-----—-—-—---—------.-----------—-.——

@core

-
@Boring

-

@Boring

---

-t ----

—-—-=------
0

ZcZz=
0+10

---—
——--‘=-——-—-----—----—---—------Boring-—-—-------------—-—--------o
-/ —

Di-

—
o

/

-
Ct,

-

I 0+20—---sç--—-----
-

Augusta

oo—NNHH 6U,6u,aLi’CU,0
oo000C000

WYDeflectionunder9,000lbLoad(mils



60
.0

0

50
.0

0

40
.0

0

C I
.

-
0

C
,

.3
3

0
.0

0

o o 0

10
.0

0

0.
00

I

h
o

!
C

Ji
I.

.. O
i

F

ii—
.)

i
t
a
J

Do
.

‘I
(lb

it

II
Ii

.
nj

,
,
,

?

icy

O
S

C I.
. 0

I
.
y

)

g

4.
00

3.
50

3.
00

0 CO o

2
.0

0

1
.5

0 C o o
F

i
i
i

4
-

i.
0
0

0.
50

0.
00

o o + o to

W
oo

dc
re

ek
D

ri
ve

D
ef

le
ct

io
ns

w
-1

W
-7

4
-J C It 2 0 9
- 0 0 C In

0 0 ÷ 0 I-
I

0 0 4, 0

Ii ‘V
Li

0 9 r’
J

0 0 + 0 m

0 0 + 0

S
ta

ti
on

(f
t)



Average Average
Subgrade Surface
Deflection Deflection

Local Street (W7), miis Local Street (Wi), mils

Augusta Dr. 0.62 Augusta Dr. 27.69
Augusta Ln. 0.42 Augusta Ln. 22.67

Brookhollow Dr. 0.55 Brookhollow Dr. 29.63
Brookmeadow 0.52 Brookmeadow 16.70
Brookside Dr. 0.52 Brookside Dr. 41.45
Brookside Dr. PCC 12.54 Rrookside Dr. PCC 28.87

Canyon Cir. 1.02 Canyon Cir. 54.33
Canyon Creek 0.65 Canyon Creek 30.12
Champions Cir. 0.51 Champions Cir. 25.15
Champions Ct. 0.22 Champions Ct. 25.25
Country Ct. 0.60 Country Ct. 65.55
Country Ln. 0.42 Country Ln. 26.26
Cypress Point 0.44 Cypress Point 17.00
Deerfield 0.47 Deerfield 26.71
Dolittle Dr. 0.36 Dolittle Dr. 42.29
Elmbrook 1.18 Elmbrook 45.04
Garrison Trl, 0.76 Garrison TrI. 45.41
Jack Miller 0.25 Jack Miller 35,11
McGregor Cir 0.79 McGregor Cir 42.85
Overbrook 0.43 Dverbrook 41.74
Overlook 0.65 Overlook 26.40
Palmer Ln. 0.82 Palmer Ln. 17.70
Par Cir. 0.47 Par Cir. 41.40
Par View 0.53 Par View 29.58
Pebblebrook 0.48 Pebblebrook 24.88
Shady Grove 0.32 Shady Grove 29.04
Spalding Cir. 0.60 Spa{ding Cir. 43.81
Stonehouse Cir. 0.41 Stonehouse Cir. 29.45
Tremont Trace 0.35 Tremont Trace 23.73
Westwood 0.37 Westwood 24.65
Wildwood Cit. 0.38 Wildwood Cir. 49.37

Wilson Cir. 0.65 Wilson Cir. 38.26
Woodbridge Cir. 0.37 Woodbridge Cir. 43.79
‘Noodcreek Dr. 0.49 Woodcreek Dr. 22.87
Woodview Ct. 0.81 Woodview Ct. 33.21



APPENDD( D

MODULUS Outputs



B
R

ci
K

[O
L

L
O

V
V

I:
\l

V
[

I’
ll

M
O

D
U

LU
S

A
N

A
L

IS
IS

3Y
51

’E
!•

(s
c
:*

:a
n
y

R
EP

O
R

O
’)

(V
e
rs

io
t

6
,0

)

D
is

tr
ic

t:
M

00
0L

T
R

A
N

G
E

Ip
5
i)

C
o
u
n
ty

T
h

ic
k

n
e
s
s

(i
n
)

M
in

im
u

m
M

ax
im

u
m

P
o
is

s
o
n

R
a
ti

o
V

a
lu

e
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y

/R
o

a
d

:
a
v
e
n
a
n
c
:

0
.7

5
5

2
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,

0
0

0
H

i:
v

=
0

.3
8

B
a
se

:
6
.0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

H
2:

v
=

0
.3

5

S
u

::
b

a
se

:
0
.0

0
8
3
:

V
=

0
.0

0

S
u
b

g
ra

d
e
:

6
6

.5
2

(b
y

06
)

1
0
,0

0
0

[4
4:

V
=

0
.4

0

L
o

ad
M

e
a
su

re
,)

D
e
fl

e
c
ti

o
n

)i
n

il
s)

:
C

a
lc

u
la

te
d

M
o
d
u
li

u
a
lu

e
s

(k
si

:
A

b
so

lu
te

D
p

th
to

S
ta

ti
o
n

(1
1

,5
)

2
1

9
2

93
R

4
95

RE
97

S
U

n
F

(E
1

)
B

A
S

E
(]

2
)

S
U

B
B

(3
3
)

S
U

B
G

)E
4
)

E
R

R
IS

e
n
s

B
e
d

ro
c
k

O
.O

O
a

9
,0

4
7

5
.B

8
7

.3
1

2
.7

4
3

3
7

1
.1

0
0
.8

7
0
,4

8
1
0
0
.0

2
0

.5
0
.0

5
7

.2
1
3
.3

0
9
1

.1

6
0

0
.0

0
0

5
,9

7
1

3
1
.1

6
1

0
.0

6
4
.7

0
2
.7

0
0
.9

0
0
.4

7
0
.3

9
5
0
.0

1
8
.4

0
.0

4
1
.2

2
3

.5
2

2
1

2
.8

8
0
0
.0

0
0

8
,9

9
3

2
5
.5

6
0

.9
3

3
.7

8
1

.8
2

0
.7

4
0
.1

9
0
.3

6
1
0
0
.0

2
1
.7

0
.0

5
1
.1

1
9
.1

9
1

4
0

.6
*

1
0

0
0

.0
0

0
8

,5
6

5
2

0
.7

8
1

0
.9

6
6
.3

4
4
.3

5
2
.3

0
1
.2

7
0
.7

4
5
0
.0

5
5
.7

0
.0

2
5
.7

5
.5

0
5

6
.4

*

1
2

0
0

.0
0

0
8

,9
8

2
1
9
.1

4
6
.7

8
3
.1

6
1

.9
3

1
.1

2
0
.6

4
0
.4

3
1
0
0
.0

3
4
.3

0
.0

5
3

.5
5

.3
9

5
5
,7

*

1
3

0
0

.0
0

0
6
,9

9
2

2
1

.9
9

8
1
9

4
.8

9
3

2
2

1
.5

7
0
.8

6
2
.4

5
5
0
.0

3
7
.2

0
.0

3
5

.5
5

.7
5

5
2
.3

*

1
4

0
0

.0
0

0
8
,9

0
2

8
9

.9
7

1
6

.2
9

8
.9

4
5
.5

0
3
.4

9
3
.3

9
2
.4

9
5
0
.0

1
0

.0
0

.0
1

7
.0

2
2
.5

1
5
9
.3

1
6

0
0

.0
0

0
8

,8
1

7
2

0
.9

0
1

0
.8

3
5
.8

2
3
.2

7
1
.2

6
0
.6

5
0
.5

4
5

0
.0

4
0

.6
0
.0

3
3
.0

2
1

.9
7

1
0

2
.4

1
8

0
0

.0
0

0
9

,0
1

4
1
5
.6

4
6
.2

2
3
.5

0
2
.1

8
0
.9

5
0
.5

7
0
.3

9
5
0
.0

5
3
.0

0
.0

4
9

.4
8

.3
9

5
9

.5
*

2
0
0
0
.0

0
0

9
,0

4
7

3
3

.1
3

9
.7

9
3
.3

7
1
.3

5
0
.7

1
0
.4

7
0
.3

5
1

0
0

.0
1
5
.0

0
.0

5
0
.1

1
9

.5
9

9
0
.6

*

2
4

0
0

.0
0

0
8

,9
6

0
3

8
.8

5
1

0
.4

5
5
.3

7
3
.6

1
1
.5

5
0
.9

1
0
.5

4
5
0
.0

1
5
.1

0
.0

3
3
.4

9
,4

9
5
5

.9
*

2
5

0
0

.0
0

0
8

,9
1

6
3

5
.0

9
1
2
.9

8
6
.7

8
4

.4
7

2
.6

0
1
.4

6
0
.9

5
7
4
.9

2
0

.3
0
.0

2
4
.6

4
.3

4
6
4
.2

3
0

0
0

.0
0

0
9
,0

2
5

3
1

.5
5

1
2

.7
7

6
.4

3
3
.3

9
1
.4

5
0
.8

2
0
.5

5
5
0
.0

2
1

.5
0

.0
3
0

.3
1
6
.1

4
8

5
,0

3
2
0
0
.0

0
0

9
,0

6
9

3
1
.2

3
1

5
,1

3
8
.3

2
4
.5

6
2
.1

7
1
.3

3
1
.1

6
1
0
0
.0

2
6
.2

0
.0

2
2

.5
1

0
.8

6
6
1
.7

*

3
4

0
0

.0
0

0
9

,9
3

8
2

4
.8

1
1
2
.0

2
7
.2

7
4
.3

6
1
.1

2
0
.5

3
0
.2

9
1
0
0
.0

2
9
.5

0
.0

3
0

.6
4

2
,9

2
3
0
0
.0

*

3
8

0
0

.0
0

0
9

,0
0

4
3

2
.5

5
9
.3

7
4
.6

9
2
.8

7
1
.5

2
1
.0

4
0
.7

8
8
6
.3

1
8
.5

0
.0

3
7

.9
8

.0
2

5
2
.1

4
0

0
0

.0
0

0
8
,9

9
2

3
5

.4
7

1
1
.5

3
5
.3

2
2
.7

8
0
.9

4
0
.5

1
0
.3

2
1
0
0
.0

1
5
.1

0
.0

3
8

.3
2
7

.1
5

3
0
0
.0

*

4
2

0
2

.2
0

0
9
,0

2
5

4
5

.3
9

1
5
.5

:
6

.3
6

2
.1

2
0

.7
2

0
.0

1
0
.4

8
2

0
0

.0
1

0
.0

0
.0

3
3
.3

3
7

.
48

5
9
.1

*

4
4

0
0

.0
0

0
8

,9
0

5
2

6
.9

9
8

.5
5

4
.6

:
2
7
4

1
.0

3
0

.4
6

0
.3

2
—

5
0
.0

2
3

.1
0

.0
4
2
.3

1
8
.3

2
5
4
.9

M
ea

n:
3

2
.0

1
1

0
.7

2
5
.3

9
3
.0

8
1
.4

3
0
.9

1
0
.6

3
7
4
.3

2
5

.5
0
.0

3
7
.2

1
6

.8
4

7
3
.3

S
td

.
D

at
’:

1
5

,8
6

2
.8

9
1
,7

3
1

.1
7

0
.7

4
0
.6

8
0
.5

1
2
4
.4

1
3
.2

0
.0

1
1
.2

1
0
.8

6
3
1
.1

V
a
rC

o
e
ff

)%
):

4
9

.5
4

2
6

.9
5

3
2

.0
9

3
7

.9
2

5
1
.3

2
7

3
9

3
7
9
.9

0
3
2
.9

5
1

.5
0
.0

3
0

.2
6
4
.4

7
4
0
.4



W
O

O
D

Im
E

E
K

D
IT

h/
E

T
T

I
M

O
D

U
LU

S
A

N
A

L
Y

SI
S

SY
ST

E
M

(S
U

l’I
N

A
R

Y
R

E
PO

R
T

)
V

e
rs

io
n

6
.0

)

D
is

tr
ic

t:
E

0
0

0
0

I
R

A
N

G
E

p
si

)

C
o
u
n
ty

:
T

h
ic

k
n

e
ss

(i
n

)
M

in
im

um
i’

ax
i:

n
u

m

9
ii

n
6
y
/R

o
a
d
:

P
a
v

e
m

e
n

t:
2
.7

5
5
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

B
a
se

:
3
.0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

S
u

b
b

a
se

:
0
.0

0
S

u
b
g
ra

d
e
:

4
8
4
5
0
3
5
c
r

In
p

u
t)

5
,0

0
0

P
o
is

so
n

R
a
ti

o
V

a
lu

e
s

H
I:

V
=

0
.3

8
8
2
:

V
0
.3

5
8
3
:

V
=

0
.0

0
8

4
:

V
=

0
,4

0

a

L
o

a
d

M
e
a
su

re
d

D
e
fl

e
c
ti

o
n

‘a
il

s
)

:
C

a
lc

u
la

te
d

M
o
d
u
h
i

v
a
lu

e
s

(k
s
i)

:
A

b
s
o
lu

te
D

p
th

to

1
.6

4
1
.1

6
2

.0
7

1
.3

7
1
.2

4
0
.6

4
2

.8
1

1
.3

3
1
.9

2
1
.4

3
1
.7

2
0
.9

8
0
.2

8
0

.1
0

2
.4

1
1
.5

0
0

.8
9

0
.4

3
3

.0
5

1
.7

3
3
.0

4
1
.7

6
1
.7

0
0
.9

8
0
9
1

0
.4

4
0

.8
5

0
.4

9
1
.3

3
0

.7
7

1
.3

5
0

.7
3

0
.5

6
0

.4
6

1
.6

3
0
.9

7
0
.8

4
0
.5

0

3
3
,3

4
3
4
.5

3
3

5
.8

4
4
0
.3

1
5
1
.2

7

S
o
a
ti

o
n

1
h
s
)

21
nO

nO
R4

R
5

ES
R

7
S

U
R

F
C

E
1)

B
A

S
E

)E
2)

S
0
B

8
(E

3
)

S
J8

S
(E

4
)

E
R

R
/S

em
s

S
e
d
ro

o
k

1
2

0
4
.0

0
0

8
,9

9
3

2
2

.2
9

1
0
.1

3
5
.4

0
3

.1
3

1
4

1
8
.0

0
0

8
,9

2
7

2
3
.4

7
1

2
.0

8
6

.6
3

4
.0

4

1
6

4
0
.0

0
0

8
,7

6
3

1
2
.5

6
6

.3
1

3
.7

2
2

.3
3

1
6
3
6
.0

0
0

9
,0

0
4

2
5
.9

9
1
2
.9

3
8
.2

3
5
.6

2

1
9

5
3
.0

0
0

9
,0

4
7

4
0
.4

4
1
2
.6

9
5

.1
8

2
.9

9

2
1
0
8
.0

0
0

8
,9

6
0

2
1
.9

2
1

2
.4

7
7
.5

9
4
.5

8

2
5
0

6
.0

0
0

9
,0

0
4

1
8

.7
7

7
.2

8
3

.2
7

1
.4

4

2
6
1
3
.0

0
0

8
,9

0
5

1
3
.5

1
7
.3

5
4

.7
1

3
.5

3

3
0

0
5
.0

0
0

9
,0

3
6

2
1
.2

2
6
.2

2
2

.6
7

1
.5

6

3
2

0
4
.0

0
0

9
,0

0
4

3
9
.6

2
1
8
.1

6
9

.2
2

5
.4

6

3
6
6
3

.0
0

0
8
9
1
6

3
2
.7

1
1
3
.4

9
9

.0
0

6
.0

5

3
8
1
2
.0

0
0

8
,6

9
7

1
9
.9

6
8
.6

6
4

.8
6

3
.1

7

4
0

0
3
.0

0
0

8
,9

8
2

3
8
.0

8
1
7
.5

3
7

.8
5

3
.3

7

4
2

0
6
.0

0
0

8
,8

3
9

2
1
.1

8
1

0
.9

5
5

.7
2

2
.8

3

4
4

0
6
.0

0
0

9
,0

0
4

2
8
.2

4
9

.1
0

4
.7

0
2

.8
3

4
6
2
9
.0

0
0

9
,0

0
4

2
1

.0
6

1
0
.0

9
5
.7

9
3

.3
3

5
0
6
0
.0

0
0

9
,0

2
4

2
3

.7
8

5
.3

8
3
.3

6
3

,7
0

M
ea

n
:

2
4

.9
9

1
0

.6
7

5
.7

4
3

.4
1

S
E

al
.

0
e
v
:

8
.3

3
3
.6

8
2

.0
6

1
.3

7

V
at

C
o
e
ff

(s
)

0
.8

9
5
5
.3

4
4
.5

0
.9

5
7
7
.0

4
7

.9
0

.6
9

1
0
0
.0

1
3

5
.5

0
.7

0
5

0
.0

8
8

.7
0
.9

9
5

0
.0

1
0
.0

0
.6

9
1

0
0

.0
5

9
.9

0
.2

2
1
0
0
.0

1
6
.2

0
,7

8
1
0
0
.0

1
5
0
.0

0
.3

1
5

2
.3

0
9
,4

1
.1

9
5
0
.0

1
7
.7

1
2
2

5
0
.0

3
7

.5
0
.7

0
5

0
.0

6
2

.0
0
.3

2
6

6
.6

1
0
.0

0
.4

3
1
0
0
.0

2
5

.3
3

.5
0

5
0
.0

1
7
.5

0
.4

1
8
7
.8

4
1
.1

0
.3

2
5
1
.8

1
5
.7

0
.6

7
7
0
.0

4
7

.0
0
.3

1
2

2
.5

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

2
6

.5
2
1
.2

3
7
.0

1
7

.
2

2
5

.6
2

0
.0

5
4

.0
2

9
.9

5
2

.3
1
5
.2

1
6
.2

2
7
.9

22
.0

2
9
.0

3
1
.6

2
6
.5

5
1

.0

2
9
.6

12
.

4
4
1
.8

1
2
.0

4
4

9
.4

2
2

.1
8

5
0
.1

1
3

.6
6

5
3
.8

*

1
2
.9

4
5

4
.1

2
0

.4
9

6
9
.0

—

1
3
.0

1
4
6
.7

*

5
5

.5
3

7
6
.4

*

2
4

.5
7

6
6
.5

2
2

.2
7

5
3
.9

1
2
.9

1
5

3
.6

*

1
8
.1

2
5
3
.4

*

1
5

.1
9

5
7
.3

*

2
6

.1
1

6
2
.2

*

1
7

.9
3

5
4

.9
*

1
3

.3
2

4
7
.3

*

1
1
.0

7
4
6
.5

2
1

.4
0

4
9
.4

1
8

.3
9

5
3

.6
1
0
,6

3
7
.0

5
7

.8
2

1
3
.1

5
1

.3
2

4
6
.7

5
3
2
.2

4
2
.1

8
9

.6





RESOLUTION NO.

____________________

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO
NEGOTIATE AND PRESENT TO THE CITY COUNCIL AN
AMENDED TASK ORDER WITH ROGERS DESIGN SERVICES FOR
NECESSARY ENGINEERING SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH THE
CITY OF WOODCREEK TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT
PLAN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $25,500.00 TO BE PAID
FOR WITH FUNDS FROM THE DEDICATED CAPITAL ACCOUNT
FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENTS.

WHEREAS, the City of Woodcreek has an extensive road network that has been
maintained at City expense; and

WHEREAS. the City Council has held numerous public hearings and adopted a
Transportation Improvement Plan to address repairs and additions to the City’s road network in
the coming years; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has finds available in an existing separate capital
improvement account for the specific purpose of road improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has an existing Master Service Aeement for Professional
Services with Dan Rogers of Rogers Design Services, and the City Council has expressed their
desire to consider an additional task order for necessary engineering services for the
implementation of the City’s Transportation Improvement Plan; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF WOODCREEK, TEXAS:

Section 1. The City Manager is instructed to coordinate with Rogers Design Services for
the preparation of a new Task Order to authorize the expenditure of no more than $25,500.00 for
necessary engineering services.

Section 2. The City Manager is instructed to coordinate with Rogers Design Services for
the preparation of a new Task Order to authorize the expenditure of no more than $25,500.00 for
necessary engineering services.

Section 3. The City Attorney is instructed to review the proposed Task Order and present
his findings to the City Manager or City Council as may be directed.

Section 4. This Resolution is effective immediately upon passage and repeals any prior
resolutions, policies or practices inconsistent or in conflict with this Resolution

PASSED & APPROVED this, the

_____

day of

_______________,

2016, by a vote of_ (ayes)
to (nays) and (abstentions) of the City Council of Woodcreek, Texas.

1



CITY OF WOODCREEK:

Mayor Eric C. Eskelund

ATTEST:

Paul Brandenburg, City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORISI:

The Low Office of Roger Gordon

2



Benefits of Implementing the Cypress Creek Watershed Protection Plan

If the Cypress Creek Watershed Protection Plan is implemented in the next three years, some of the
benefits to the community and leadership include:

• Reduced nonpoint source pollution (NPS) in Cypress Creek and prevent increases in NPS in the

future

• Demonstrated and proven best management measure options that improve water quality

• Site-specific retrofits for LID

• Increased decision-making capacity to preserve water quality through local permitting

• Additional methods to quantify water quality impacts through land management authorities

• Increased accuracy of tools available for decision makers to calculate effects of future land use

changes and development activities on NPS loadings

• A comprehensive, watershed level storm-water assessment with BMPs that mitigate the effects

of storm-water and NPS

• Additional data needed to adequately monitoring water quality

• Improve understanding of surface water and groundwater interchanges on water quality

• Coordinated water resources and related environmental outreach/education efforts across the
watershed

• Improve understanding of relationships between groundwater and source water, surface water,
recharge, and vulnerability to impacts on water quality

1L!1 ;“:mS
conprehans,,e I ssmen Competisi at Stcrnwater sassqna,t Erthdirg

SsorrnweterA,ae:rrent eeledsi or tftlps ant Ioraeor, for irnpemantatior
based en ftnd5,

Roer,s Euffa—: 1 Maraga :er:,’ an pdoriti:e Iorat;ons for imp-enentabor
baiter area co,i-rtrrsenss far st’eams,de ratu—a buffer
Idan:i3ad rnaragarant

a:nrca:er H ‘caSt ng &aslrstrnert darro,t:raticn a-a, and ::ar fl nude
ttrat+gs DenonotutSpn ad:zt-,r of ‘sat s au ne-s deee’ttrrd

Wee

I Eerrrso Estab,hnent of oerror.enat:r rea: thr,ughnjt tnt

Cameras -at: n oazn and toe -fl at ‘ass- dertlopirert rn utar: sjut
Aces spates, adoes toeuo:srd sodc wre app’orate

Bsotrraz-,ri-,sr ga-ocr E,ta,Ibhqrn:nt OS cern it’at:Ofl area:. and car

-

rensiaatztor set in at r.e-. ne-:e!oprnent a pursI:rcpares or adned

-

-cas to eaittng cede: ar s.ate’puattc orete or naaose
Exi,trg SMP Inspastiona Es-zbtshntnr Cf progran to macrain e’et:rg EMPe
Ma:-iteran:e and - for ,roper fersetion

fntaringwattra,ae rosalie a of E,nairg V,attrsned Sgnaon - -

Cr Roadway -soeaWavtc ‘crease 5tttjfiitv are_,

Watershed C,ordr,et:r I Door±iatr S vnp!oyee temp a-tans 3M’s for avarar
adurnor- and com-noniry a sranetc -

- Enta-icac Wa:a Qusary 1 Session I seseioq enhance’ Water Qa-r and
Vos&ng CCCII; so i’ipnase aratar qe my

I.’:osie::ng Ct-tiSt- nna5sn at the seen ant &an5en

Benefit for City of Woodcreek

• Investment of cash and in-kind contributions valued at approximately $44,247



o $20,000 cash contribution toward the total cost of the Storm-water planning and

assessment

o Woodcreek staff time to participate in the Stakeholder Committee meetings to advise

the implementation activities. The estimated in-kind value is: $2,527

o ($23.40/hour*3 hour-long meetings*36 meetings)

o Woodcreek leadership time to participate in efforts related to implementation.

Estimated value: $7,700 ($43/hour 5 hours/month * 3 years

o Partial costs of installing rainwater harvesting and similar LID & green infrastructure

demonstrations at the Woodcreek City Hall. The estimated value is up to $14,020

• Benefit worth approximately $568,000

o In-kind technical services from MCWE valued at $100,000

o Quality assured water quality and quantity monitoring efforts, data, analyses and

modeling activities from MCWE and GBRA valued at $150,000

o Comprehensive stormwater assessment and recommendations valued at $85,000

o Demonstration BMP rainwater harvesting project at Woodcreek City Hall value of

$33,000

o Outreach and Education, including materials, DSS model, review of ordinances, etc.

valued at $200,000



Legal Q&A
By Christy Drake-Adams. TML Legal Counsel

Must a city designate an officia’ newspaper?

Yes. State law requires that at the beginning of the fiscal year, the city council of a Type A city
designate its official newspaper by resolution or ordinance and contract with that paper to
publish required notices. TEx. Loc. Govt CODE § 52.004(a). Each ordinance, notice, and any
other matter required by law or ordinance to be published must be published in the official paper,
regardless of where else it is published. Id. § 52004(b).

These requirements are not expressly provided in state law for other types of general law cities.
However, they arguably apply because of the “borrowing provisions.’ Specifically, Type B cities
have the same duties as a Type A city, unless there is a conflicting state provision regarding only
Type B cities. Id. § 5 1.035. And, depending on its population, a Type C city has either the same
duties as a Type B city or a Type A city. Id. § 51 051.

State law also seems to anticipate that a home rule city designate an official newspaper. See Id. §
52.013(b) (“If the charter. . . does not provide for the method of publication of an ordinance, the
fufl text of the ordinance or a caption that summarizes the purpose of the ordinance and the
penalty for violating the ordinance may be published at least twice in the municipality’s official
newspaper.”). In some cities, the charter actually “name[s] the official newspaper in which to
publish the official city notices.” TERRELL BLODGETT, TExks HOME RULE CHARTERS 93 (2d. ed.
2010). Any details regarding the designation, such as the timing and form of desiguation, are
found in the city’s charter, as well.

Must a city seek competitive bids or proposals in designating its official newspaper?

Maybe. With certain exceptions, a city is required to follow the bidding or proposal procedures
outlined in Local Government Code Chapter 252 when it plans to make an expenditure of more
than S50.000 in city hinds. Thx. Loc. Govt CODE § 252.021; Id. § 252.022(a)(16) (providing
that Chapter 252 does not apply to an expenditure for advertising, other than legal notices). An
infornml survey conducted by the Texas Municipal League in 2012 indicates that only the largest
cities (500,000-plus population) reach this 550,000 spending threshold for newspaper
publications. However, it is important to note that a city may impose on itself a lowerdollar
threshold and, in that way, trigger the need to competitively bid for an official newspaper.

What criteria must a newspaper meet in order to qualify as the official newspaper?

While there is some dispute among attorneys as to the exact requirements that apply in
designating an official newspaper, a city using the criteria in Government Code Sections
2051.044 and 2051.048 is on strong legal footing. Section 2051.044 provides that a newspaper
used to convey official notices must as a general matter:

(1) devote not less than 25 percent of its total column lineage to general interest items;
(2) be published at least once each week;



J..

(3) be entered as second-class postal matter in the county where published; and
(4) have been published regularly and continuously for at least 12 months before the

goveriunental entity or representative publishes notice.

TEx. GOv’T CODE § 205 1.044(a).

Section 2051.048 provides that a notice published by a city must, as a general matter, be
published in a newspaper:

(1) that is published in the city; and
(2) that will publish the notice at or below the legal rate.

Id. § 2051.048(b). (Note: Section 205 1.048 provides alternative requirements when no
newspaper is published in the city at the specified rate. Id. § 2051.048(c)-(d).)

A home rule city must also look to its charter for any additional criteria. See, e.g., State cx i-eL
Winn v. City ofSan Antonio, 259 S.W.2d 248, 25 1-52 (Tex. Civ. App—San Antonio 1953, writ
ref d n.r.e.) (discussing a charter provision that required publication in a “daily newspaper”).

Has a city’s designation of a particular newspaper as its “official newspaper” ever been
challenged?

Yes. From time to time, we hear from cities that receive threatening letters from a newspaper
claiming that the city has not complied with the law’ in its designation of an official newspaper.
This often arises when a city is located in more than one county and has multiple papers to
choose from, or when a city is changing its official newspaper. Some newspapers have actually
sued cities in conjunction with the desiation of an official newspaper. See, e.g.. Foniev
Messenger, Inc. v. Tennon, 959 F.Supp. 389. 390 (ND. Tex. 1997) (alleging that city officials
conducted a sham bidding process and then voted to switch all city advertising to a different
newspaper in violation of the Open Meetings Act).

Is an “official newspaper” the same thing as a newspaper of “general circulation”?

No, not necessarily. The attorney general has opined that a newspaper of general circulation is
one that: (1) has more than a de minimis number of subscribers within a specific geographic
region; (2) has a diverse readership; and (3) publishes some items of general interest to the
community. Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JC-0223 (2000). Thus, if your city is acting under one of
the many statutes that requires notice be published in a newspaper of general circulation, the
newspaper must meet the three criteria set out above.

In addition, assuming the law under which the city is acting does not specify a contrary maimer
of publication, the attorney general has opined that a newspaper of general circulation must also
meet the requirements of an official newspaper. Id. (discussing county publications and
concluding that “a newspaper of general circulation must be a newspaper for the purposes of
section 2051 .044, in addition to having more than a de minimis number of subscribers and a
diverse subscribersHp’).

7



What could happen if a cit is required, but fails, to use a newspaper of general
circulation?

A city that takes an action for which notice must be published in a newspaper of general
circulation is subject to having that action challenged if a proper newspaper is not used. See, e.g..
Christy v. Williams, 292 S.W.2d 348, 350-51 (Te. Civ App—Galveston 1956, writ dismd)
(challenging a bond election notice because the paper was not entered as a second class postal
matter); Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. GA-0380 (2005) (discussing possible consequences of countys
failure to use a newspaper of general circulation).

How much should a newspaper charge your city to publish a notice?

Section 2051 .045 of the Government Code provides that the legal rate for publication of a notice
in a newspaper by a governmental entity is the newspaper’s lowest published rate for classified
advertising.

If no newspaper published in either the city or the county in which the city is located will publish
the notice at or below this legal rate, a city should post the notice at the door of the county
courthouse in the court in which the city is located. TEX. Gov’T CODE § 2051.048(d); see also
Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. GA-0856 (2011).

Where is a newspaper published?

The attorney general has opined that, under Texas law, the location of publication is where the
newspaper is released to the public. Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. GA-0838 (2011) (citing Christy v.
Williams, 292 S.W.2d 348, 352 (Tex. Civ. App—Galveston 1956, writ dism’d) and Tex. Att’y
Gen. Op. No. 0-7112 (1946)).

‘Which state statutes require a city to publish notice in the newspaper?

A non-comprehensive review of the state law identified more than 100 statutes that require cities
to publish some type of notice in a newspaper. Many statutes require publication of the same
notice multiple times. Following are some of the most common situations in which state law
requires a city to publish a notice in a newspaper:

• Adopting an Ordinance. See, e.g.. TEx. Lou. GOV’T CODE § 52.011-013.
• Holding an Election. See, e.g.. TEx. ELEC. CODE § 4.003. TEx. Lou. Govt CODE §9.004

(charter amendment).
• Conducting a Hearing. See, e.g.. TEx. Lou. GoVT CODE § 43.0561 (annexation).

102.0065 (budget). 211.006 (zoning).
• Making a Purchase. See, e.g., Id. § 252.04 1.

What is one of the most common questions the attorneys at the League receive regarding
newspaper notice?

3



One of the most frequent inquiries our attorneys receive in relation to newspaper notice is
whether state law requires a city to advertise job openings in a newspaper. The answer is no.
There is no law that requires a city to advertise every job opening in a newspaper. Nevertheless,
one way to prevent having an Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC)
discrimination complaint or lawsuit filed against the city is to sufficiently advertise job openings,
which may include advertisement in a newspaper.

To avoid a discrimination claim, a city should advertise ajob opening so that it reaches a large
cross-section of the population. Federal, state, and sometimes local laws prohibit hiring practices
that discriminate on the grounds of age, disability, race, color, religion, sex, pregnancy,
citizenship, military service, and national origin. Thus, a city’s hiring practice of merely
advertising an opening to a certain geographic area, for example, may be used as evidence of
discriminatory intent if a claim is filed against the city. For that reason, many cities choose to
advertise job openings not only in a newspaper of general circulation, but in places like trade
magazines and on the Internet.

If your city does not have a hiring policy, including a policy regarding the advertisement of a job
opening, you should seriously consider adopting one. Before advertising a job vacancy, the city
should have a written job description in place that provides objective qualifications and
responsibilities necessary to perform the job. The description should be devoid of any reference
to sex, race, national origin, or any other protected class. In addition, ajob description should
include the essential functions of the position and other requirements, such as education, skills,
and work experience. The job description should be used as a template for the job advertisement.

By taking the time to adopt a hiring policy and to advertise ajob opening to a wide range of
people, your city: (1) increases its chance of hiring the best qualified person for the job; and (2)
decreases the chance of facing a discrimination claim or lawsuit.

4


